WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Monday, July 13, 2020
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215
West Palm Beach, Florida 33409

“PLEASE SIGN OUR ATTENDANCE SHEET”

NOTE: Agenda Summary (Pages 3-6})
Staff Report (Pages 7-10)

. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
. AGENDA APPROVAL
1. Additions, Deletions, Substitutions fo Agenda
2. Adoption of Agenda
ill. ADOPTION OF W/BH CRA MINUTES (Pages 11-13)
IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS
V. DISCLOSURES
V. CONSENT AGENDA

Vil. REGULAR AGENDA

1. Approval of Density Bonus Units and TCEA trips for Autumn Ridge -
1580 & 1610 Congress Avenue (Pages 14-42)

2. Approval of Funding for the Design of Westgate Avenue Streetscape
Project (Pages 43-94 )

3. Draft Budget for FY 2020-2021 (Pages 95-99 )

Vill. REPORTS
A. Staff Reports
Correspondence
B. Attorney’s Report
C. Committee Reports and Board Comments

Administrative/Finance —

Capital Improvements — Chair, Mr. Daniels
Land Use -

Real Estate — Chair, Mr. Kirby

Marketing —

RPN



6. Community Affairs —
7. Special Events — Chair, Ms. Rufty

IX. ADJOURNMENT

ANY PERSON MAKING IMPERTINENT OR SLANDEROUS REMARKS OR WHO
BECOMES BOISTEROUS WHILE ADDRESSING THE BOARD WILL BE BARRED FROM
FURTHER AUDIENCE BEFORE THE BOARD BY THE PRESIDING OFFICER, UNLESS
PERMISSION TO CONTINUE OR AGAIN ADDRESS THE BOARD AS GRANTED BY A
MAJORITY VOTE OF THE BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT.

IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THIS BOARD WITH
RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, HE WILL NEED A
RECORD OF THE PROCEEDING, AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE HE MAY NEED TO
ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH
RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS
TO BE BASED.

ON JUNE 7, 1994, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS APPROVED
RESOLUTION NO. 94-693, KNOWN AS THE CODE OF ETHICS. UNDER SECTION 11,
IT IS REQUIRED THAT PAID AND UNPAID LOBBYISTS REGISTER. PLEASE REFER
TO SECTONS 11.01 AND 11.02 IN THE CODE OF ETHICS FOR REGISTRATION
SPECIFICS. FOR YOUR USE, REGISTRATION FORMS ARE AVAILABLE FROM THE
CRA’S ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT.



L

ESTGIERENEDA VR

UM RE DR 2 A

AGENDA ITEMS

Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Board Meeting
July 13, 2020

REGULAR AGENDA:

1. Approval of Density Bonus Units and TCEA trips for Autumn Ridge — 1580 &1610 N.
Congress Avenue

A. Background and Summary: The +/-3.58-acre site is located on the east side of
Congress Avenue south of Westgate Avenue. The site consists of 2 contiguous narrow
parcels which back onto a drainage lake privately owned by the Lakeside Mobile Home
Park. The site has split zoning: the parcel to the north is zoned Residential Multifamily
medium density (RM) and has a small single family dwelling; the larger parcel to south
is zoned Commercial General (CG) and is vacant. Both parcels have a Commercial
High with an underlying residential future land use designation of 8 du/acre (CH/8). The
parcel to the south was approved in 2002 for a vocational school/non-profit assembly
use in Res. #R-2002-0835, but the project didn't move forward, and all entitlements
have expired. The site is located within the boundaries of the Urban General (UG) Sub-
area of the WCRADO. Directly to the north of the site is a 7.5-acre vacant assemblage
approved for a 198-unit market rate multifamily development called the Greene
Apartments; the project is currently in permitting. To the south is an established
commercial office-warehouse development. The site is in the U/S Tier as well as in the
Revitalization and Redevelopment Infill Overlay (RRIO), Urban Redevelopment Area
Overlay (URAO), and the CCRT area.

Landmark Companies, the contract purchaser (dba Autumn Ridge, LLC), is a Miami-
based workforce/affordable housing developer with several successful multifamily
projects in South Florida including the recently constructed Dunbar Village in West Palm
Beach, as well as Westgate Plaza, an 80-unit seniors affordable housing development
built in 2012 on Westgate Avenue. Autumn Ridge is a 106-unit multifamily seniors-only
Low Income Tax Credit (LITC) rental development comprised of 1 and 2 bedroom units
in a 5-story building, for a total GFA of 108,989 sf, including a small 1,100 sf ground

Page | 1
WCRA Board Meeting
July 13. 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

5



floor ancillary commercial retail space; 54 one-bedroom units and 52 two-bedroom units
are proposed. A recreation space, open to the public, is also included as a site amenity.
To streamline entitlements, avoid tripping the development and public hearing approvals
thresholds, and to achieve the desired density, the applicant is requesting 77 WCRAO
density bonus units. These additional units may be approved by the DRO if the increase
does not exceed 22 dwelling units per acre; this project is requesting an additional
density of 21.6 du/ac.

Summary of Request: The applicant is seeking approval for:

1.

2.
3.

4.

A 106-unit multifamily seniors-only LITC rental development with an 1,100 sf
commercial retail space on a +/- 3.58-acre site;

An allocation of 77 units from the unit pool of WCRAOQO Density Bonus Program;

An allocation of 610 trips per day, 38 am peak hour trips and 50 pm peak hour trip
from the WCRAO Transportation Concurrency Exception Area (TCEA) trips pool;
and

DRO site plan approval.

B. Recommendation: CRA Staff recommends approval of the following:

1.

4,

A 106-unit multifamily seniors-only LITC rentai development with an 1,100 sf
commercial retail space on a +/- 3.58-acre site. The subject application requests a
recommendation of approval from the Westgate CRA Board for the proposed
development pursuant to include the following:

An allocation of 77 units from the unit pool of WCRAQ Density Bonus Program;

An allocation of 610 trips per day, 38 am peak hour trips and 50 pm peak hour trip
from the WCRAOQO Transportation Concurrency Exception Area (TCEA) trips pool;
and

DRO site plan approval.

2. Approval of Funding for the Design of Westgate Avenue Streetscape Project

A. Background and Summary: In April, the CRA Board approved a Memorandum of

Understanding fo allow the County to administer the CRA's Transportation Agency

Grant for Westgate Avenue. To implement the grant, the County’s Engineering

Page | 2

WCRA Board Meeting

July 13. 2020

1280 M. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 o West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax 561.640.8180

4



WESTGATEBELVELERE HUAIES

AN R U

Department has asked advance funding for the design and the administration of the

Project. The total projected cost for the design of the project is $945,948.80, (design
fee: $540,549.01; staff cost: $216,210.00; 25% contingency: $189,189.80)

The project will cover Westgate Avenue from Wabasso Drive to Congress Avenue. It
will reduce travel lanes, add on-street parking, install streetlights, reconfigure
sidewalks, move curb and gutters and install street trees and landscaping. American
Consulting Engineers is the prime consultant. Brown & Phillips, Inc. will provide
surveying services. Constructive Engineering Inc. will provide signing/pavement
marking. Insite Studio will provide landscape architecture Services, Smith
Engineering Consultants, Inc. will provide lighting design services. The cost for the

prime consultant and the subs is $540,549.01. It also includes post design fees.

B. Recommendation: Approve a funding of $945,948.80 to Engineering Department for

the design of the Westgate Avenue Streetscape Project.

3. Draft Budget for FY 2020-2021

A. Background and Summary: The CRA Budget includes three parts, the
Redevelopment Trust Fund, the Capital Improvement Project, and the Transportation
Enhancement grants. The Redevelopment Trust Fund presents in a line-by-line format
all the items funded by the tax increment revenues and rental income. This part details
the administrative and the programmatic expenses. A new line item was created to add
funding for the COVID-19 Small Business Assistance Grant. The preliminary tax roll
value shows that the TIF might increase by 9% this year (adding more than $200,000 to
the budget); however, we don’t expect to see much of an increase when the final tax is

Page | 3

WCRA Board Meeting

July 13. 2020

1280 N. Cengress Avenue, Suite 215 e  West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax 561.640.8180

5



WESTGATEBELNEDERE HOMES

L TR T IR R RIE ST

computed at the end of the year. It is very probable that market value of real properties
may decrease which will result in a decrease in TIF.

The Capital Improvement Project portion provides funding from the trust fund and grants
to complete infrastructure improvement projects and acquire properties for
redevelopment. The grants received from CDBG and SWA are included in this portion
of the Budget.

The Transportation Enhancement part shows the grants received from the
Transportation Planning Agency and the Department of Transportation. These grants
are being managed by the Paim Beach County Engineering Department, but they were
awarded to the CRA through grant applications submitted by CRA Staff. These funding
is provided on a reimbursement basis. This information is being shared with the Board
to show the TPA grant activities and timeline. No actual cash will be given to the CRA.

B. Staff Recommendation: This is the first reading of the budget. Staff is only seeking
input. A final budget will be presented at next month meeting. It will include
considerations and input from the July meeting.

Page | 4
WCRA Board Meeting
July 13. 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e West Palm Beach, Fiorida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

6



Page | 1

WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES CRA BOARD MEETING

Staff Update on In-House Projects
July 13, 2020

2020-01 and 2020-02 ULDC Amendment Round {(NEW}

Update: Due to COVID-19, the ULDC Amendment is being moved from the first round (2020-01) to the
second round (2020-02). A draft of the amendment was submitted to the County’s Zoning Division.

The CRA is seeking to make amendments to its overlay that are focused on the following: restrict or
limit certain commercial and industrial uses that do not support the intent of the Sub-area or the Plan
such as car wash, landscape service, commercial parking, self-storage and distribution facilities,
manufacturing & processing, warehouse, and wholesaling; revise PDR's to reflect smaller lot sizes on
Westgate Ave and Okeechobee Blvd allowing more flexibility in development without the need for
variances; eliminate sky exposure planes; and revise the Density Bonus Program to be consistent with
the County's WHP in design, compliance and enforcement, also revising the criteria for WCRA approval
of bonus units to allow better access for smaller residential projects.

Background: Amendments to the County’s Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) occur twice
annually. The CRA regularly participates in this process to update areas of its WCRA Zoning Overlay to
better achieve the goals and objectives of the agency and the amended Community Redevelopment
Plan, respond to industry and market trends, simplify processes, and correct technical and language
glitches.

2019-02 ULDC Amendment Round (COMPLETED)

Completed: The BCC adopted amendments to the WCRAOQ at their January 27, 2020 Zoning meeting.
These amounts adjusted exterior improvement criteria to obtain 100% renovation value and created
new PDRs and supplementary standards for residential uses including cottage homes on 25 ft lofs.

Public Assistance Grant (ONGOING)

FEMA has approved nearly $100,000 to pay for debris removal, and clean up detention ponds as a
result of Hurricane Irma. Staff is working with the Florida Department of Emergency Management to
implement this project.

Community Garden/Greenmarket (ONGOING)

Ongoing: Construction to install electricity, an irrigation pump and an irrigation system have been
installed. Staff is working on securing a contractor for site improvements and installation of a pre-
manufactured structure to act as a permanent greenmarket. Once the Plat is approval and recorded
and the corner clip conveyed, building permits can be submitted.

Background: Staff engaged Schmidt-Nichols (SN) to prepare a site plan for the community garden and
the green market. The CRA initiated new regulations to allow green markets to operate as an
accessory to community gardens without having to buffer surrcunding residential uses with an opaque
wall and 20 ft landscape buffer. The site plan includes an enclosed structure with a bathroom and a
walk-in cooler. The community garden/greenmarket received site plan approval in March 2018.

CRA staff proposed amendment language, adopted in the 2018-02 Round, to eliminate the community
garden use from landscaping requirements, and modified code language regarding hours of operation

F‘l



Page | 2

and building size and placement for the accessory greenmarket use. Schmidt Nichols submitied an
administrative amendment (ZAR) to remove the landscape buffers and ROW utility easement. The ZAR
was approved in April 2019. The permits have been approved to operate the community garden. The
electrician and plumbing contractors are working with the utility companies. The CRA will begin to work
with a contractor/architect to design the greenmarket structure and prepare plans to submit for building
permit. Platting is a condition of approval and is underway.

PBC Solid Waste Authority (SWA) Bliaghted & Distressed Properties Grants

FY 2018 — Oswego Avenue Properties Clean-up (STARTED)

Update: The CRA has paid a contractor to remove evasive trees, vegetation and debris on the sites. An
additional time extension of the grant agreement has been provided by the SWA.

Staff worked with Schmidt Nichels on the dog park design. A site and landscape plan, along with cost
estimate have been provided. The CRA is also working with County Purchasing to see if the agency
can utilize the County's annual contract “piggyback” policy. The remaining lots will be cleared, sodded,
and fence commensurate with the original scope.

Background: The CRA was awarded in the amount of $92,700 fo clean-up, clear, sod and fence 6
vacant CRA-owned properties on Oswego Avenue east of Seminole Blvd. previously earmarked for the
L-2 Canal Expansion project. The CRA is proposing match funds in the amount of $34,460. An
Interiocal Agreement between the CRA & SWA was approved by the BCC in March 2018. The CRA
received a 50% disbursement of total funds in April 2018.

SWA has approved an extension to the grant timeline and a change of scope to develop a dog park on
three of the Oswego Avenue parcels targeted for the properties clean-up. The dog park will include
areas and equipment for small and large dogs, fencing, landscaping, and benches. By the fall of 2018,
the LWDD cleared a majority of the vegetation overgrowth along the L-2 canal leaving a window of
opportunity in the budget to create a simple dog park and still maintain the overall budgeted amount.

FY 2017 - Oswego Oaks Park (ONGOING)
Update: The Park has been completed and has passed iis final inspection.

Background: The CRA was awarded in the amount of $151,000 to design and build a neighborhood
park on Oswego Avenue at Seminocle Blivd across from the Westgate Recreation Center. The park will
utilize 3 vacant CRA owned lots formerly earmarked for the L.-2 Canal expansion project. Staff worked
with PBC Parks & Recreation to design the project. In 2017, PBC HES originally approved a request for
$114,000 in CDBG funds to match the SWA grant. The SWA forwarded 50% of the grant amount to the
CRA to start the project. Following completion of design and engineering drawings, it became clear that
the project was underfunded. CRA Staff requested additional funding of $231,000 in FY 2018 CDBG
allocations from HES to cover a budget shortfall for the park project. Consiruction drawings were
finalized and the project was advertised for bid in August 2018. The contract was awarded to the lowest
bidder West Construction Inc. The contract has been executed and construction began in November
2018.

PBC_ Transportation Planning Agency {TPA) Transportation Alternatives (TAP) & Local
- Initiatives (LI) Grants

FY 2020 Cherry Road Pedestrian & Safety Improvements (NEW)
Update: The project has been approved.
Background: The CRA engaged consultants, WGI to refine the Cherry Rd. improvements project for

18



Page |3

TPA TAP grant application submittal in the 2020 cycle. CRA Staff and WGI worked with Engineering on
improving the proposed typical sections. The project proposes reduced with travel lanes for traffic
calming, new sidewalks on the south side of Cherry Rd east and west of the bridge to the intersection
of Country Club Rd., a new 12’ shared multi-use path on the north side of the corridor, new crosswalks,
pedestrian scale lighting, and shade trees where allowed. The total project cost is $1.96 million. The
grant reimburses $1 million. The application was submitted to the TPA on February 28, 2020.

FY 2019 and Seminole Blvd. Complete Streets (FUNDED/ONGOING)

Update: The Transportation Planning Agency Governing Board approved funding for the Seminole Blvd
project at their July 18" meeting. The Seminole project was ranked #1. Staff and WGI presented the
projects to FDOT and BTPAC in early April; Seminole was ranked #1 and Cherry Rd was #4. The
Board recommended that the Seminole Blvd project should be prioritized since it ranked higher and is a
larger project.

Background: The Board approved a two-fold work assignment with WGI in November 2018 to prepare
a feasibility analysis to identify the best two projects to submit to the TPA for the 2019 Transportation
Alternatives Program (TAP) cycle. Based on findings presented by WGI, the Board selected the
foliowing projects:

1. Seminole Blvd Complete Streets which expands existing sidewalks to 10-12 ft. multi-use paths on
each side of the roadway, adds high visibility crosswalks at each intersection, adds pedestrian scale
lighting, and shade trees. The project boundaries are from Okeechobee Bivd. to Oswego Ave. Total
construction cost is $1,622,979. The grant reimburses $1 million.

2. Cherry Road Pedestrian Safety Improvements adds new sidewalks on the south side of Cherry Rd
and expands existing sidewalks on the north side to 10-12 ft., adds HAWK signalization to intersection
at Country Club Rd., and two new crosswalks along the corridor, new pedestrian scale lighting, and
shade trees. The project boundaries are from Quail Drive to N. Military Trail. Total construction cost is
$911,142.

TAP grant projects are designed and constructed within 3 years of prioritized funding. Design will begin
in 2020 with construction completion in 2022.

FY18 — Westgate Avenue Corridor Complete Streets (DESIGN STARTED)

Update: Design has begun on the Westgate Avenue project. CRA Staff met with County Roadway
Production and the project consulting engineers in February to discuss the design, scope and timeline
of the project. The CRA has been asked to provide input on lighting design and landscaping. The
consulting engineers have included a roundabout at the intersection of Westgate Ave. and Seminole
Blvd. in their design. At their February meeting, the CRA Board, following discussion, expressed their
disapproval of a roundabout at this location.

A County Selection Committee met in November 2019 and selected American Consulting Engineers of
Florida (ACE) to design the project. CRA staff was in attendance for the presentations and scoring. The
County Engineering Department had shortlisted three firms for the project, including CRA consultants
WG|, however, volume of previous work was an overriding factor in selection.

Background Information: Staff engaged WGI to coordinate the preparation of travel demand forecast
modelling to determine the impact of reducing Westgate Ave from 5 lanes to 3 lanes utilizing a road diet
approach. WGI facilitated communication with PBC TPA and Engineering to determine the best design
alternative, held a public input meeting, and drafted the final design for the project be used to obtain
funding. WGI met with the Engineering Department to present the lane elimination plan. County staff is
in support of the lane reduction from Wabasso to Congress, but they are not in support of the elevated
landscape median. An alternative design, which allows for 3 lanes (2 thru lanes and one center turn

%




Page | 4

lane), bike lanes, and floating landscape islands on both sides of the ROW alternating with on street
parking was presented to County Engineering for approval and support. With assistance from WGI, the
LI grant application was submitted on March 2, 2018. CRA staff is working with County Engineering
and Administration to design and administer all 3 of the TPA grant projects.

The TPA Governing Board voted to adopt the TPA List of Priority Projects for the LRTP FY 2020-2024
at their September 20, 2018 meeting. Projects that met TPA and FDOT eligibility requirements were
ranked by internal advisory boards, committees and TPA Staff to be forwarded the Governing Board.
The Westgate Avenue Complete Streets project was ranked #1 of 6 entries to receive Local Initiatives
Program funding. This project has been moved up the timeline due to the inability of other funded
projects to proceed. Design can start in July 2019 for FY 2019/20. Construction funding will be
approved after the design is completed.

FY 2018 — Phase |l Belvedere Heights Streetlights & Sidewalks (FUNDED/ONGOING)

Update: Design has started. The construction of the project is planned {o start in summer 2022.

Background Information: CRA staff prepared and submitted a Transportation Alternatives Program
(TAP) grant application for Phase 1l — Wellington Road to Bridgeman Road, of the Belvedere Heights
Neighborhood for sidewalks and streetlights to PBC TPA in March 2018.

FY 2017 — Phase | Belvedere Heights Streetlights & Sidewalks (DESIGN NEARLY COMPLETE)

Update: Construction is scheduled to start in 2021. The County wants to install water mains first. The
Engineering Department has engaged several consultants through a CRA/County MOU to implement
the project. Design is almost completed. The County is currently reaching out to the residents.

Background Information: An application was submitted to the TPA Transportation Alternatives Grant to
request almost $1 Million to install sidewalks and sireetlights in Belvedere Heights in 2017. The funds
will not be available until 2019. The BCC approved Engineering Department sponsorship of the project
via resolution in May 2018.

CRA 5-year Strategic Plan {OCNGOING)

CRA staff has begun drafting a 5-year strategic plan that will implement the goals and objectives of the
newly amended Redevelopment Plan. A strategic plan will outline the specific tasks, timeline and
budget required for redevelopment activities over the next 5 years. It can also serve as a platform for
the CRA to refine its vision and mission statement in a way that is current with its shifting priorities. Staff
has received some initial input from Board members. Work on the Strategic Plan is ongoing.

Streetlights for Belvedere Homes (ONGOING)

The Engineering Department is partnering with Office and Community Revitalization to install streetlight
in Belvedere Homes. An initial meeting has been held. Citizens are currently gathering signatures and
easement authorization from residents and property owners.




Proposed Private Redevelopment Projects

Page | 5

Below is list of private development projects in the Westgate CRA that are in the entittements or

permitting process:

Projects Address Status

Car Wash (potential project -- 2200 Okeechobee Blvd. DRO Approvai required. Applicants to meet
formerly KFC/Jack's with Zoning staff

Restaurant)

Cottage home project

2611 Saranac

1-acre site newly subdivided into 14 25 ft lots
for cottage homes

New Country Motor Cars —
Mercedes-Ferrari

4000 Okeechobee

DOA/Concurrent Type Il variance requests —
redistributing square footage,
expanding/renovating maintenance area, roof
top inventory parking

Gas Saton {Crole i 700.C A
Westgate
Mercedes/Ferrari Okeechobee Blvd ZAR for changes to architectural elevations

Health Career Institute

1764 Congress Ave

In Zoning review for a DOA to a MUPD.

Adding 680 students. Redistributing square
footage. Increasing daily trips by 500 (CRA
may not have TCEA trips remaining in pool)

Quick Lane (Ford/Lincoln
Dealership)

1668 N, Military Trail

Not yet submitted. Requires rezoning to CG
and BCC approval for a Class A conditional
use

Congress Avenue -
Greene Apartments

1600 N. Congress Ave

In Zoning for DRO approval. 198 units — 138
density bonus units from WCRA poal; 55
income restricted. Issues with compensating
storm water storage

Fern House

Church Street

In Zoning for DRO approval

MacDonald Industrial/McArthur
Dairy

N, Florida Mango

Type 2 walver for extended hours of
aperation. BCC approved January.
Construction to begin mid 2019

Extraordinary Charities

2635 Old Okeechobee Rd

Nonconformities certification. Interior/exterior
rengvations complete

Mi Pais Express (Fernandez) 2633 Westgate Ave Platting process has begun. Permit submitted.

Mixed Use Architectural review for mixed use required.
CRA has prepared easement agreement.
Architectural review underway

s ; = or Sl MarnoDi - :

cor At : Rezening-approved BCC-On-held

Westgate Apartments Westgate Ave (adjacent to Workforce housing project — 48 units. On hold

Westgate Plaza)

Dos Hermanos Mixed Use

Westgate & Seminole Blvd

Rezoning & variances approved. DRO site
plan approval. New architect

Speedy’s Tires Auto Repair
expansion

Congress Ave. & Cherry
Rd.

Approved at Dec BCC/Final DRO. Admin
amendment. Zoning complete. Platting &
contractor selection

Woestgate One

Westgate at Nokomis

Approved! Extension. Potential residentjal
project

Autumn Ridge

1580 & 1610 Congress
Avenue

106-unit multifamily seniors-only LIHTC
rentals

|0



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
1280 N. CONGRESS AVE., SUITE 215, WEST PALM BEACH, FL. 33409
MINUTES OF THE MONTHLY MEETING

June 08, 2020
CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Daniels, the Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:00p.m. The roll was called
by Ms. Bui.

Present: Ronald Daniels
Joanne Rufty
Ralph Lewis
Yeraldi Benitez — Logged on at 5:04p.m.
Ruth Haggerty

Absent: Enol Gilles
Joseph Kirby

Staff Present: Elizée Michel, Executive Director
Denise Pennell, Senior Planner
Carmen Geraine, Bookkeeper

Mai Bui, Administrative Assistant
Thomas J. Baird, Esq., General Counsel

AGENDA APPROVAL
1. Additions, Deletions, Substitutions to Agenda

- No Additions, Deletions, Substitutions to Agenda
2. Adoption of Agenda

- Itwas moved by Ms. Rufty and seconded by Ms. Haggerty to adopt the Agenda.
Motion carried (4-0)

ADOPTION OF W/BH CRA MINUTES

- It was moved by Ms. Haggerty and seconded by Ms. Rufty to adopt the
minutes of the April 13, 2020 meeting as amended. Motion carried (4-0)

||



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting
June 08, 2020
Page 2

Iv.

V.

VL.

Vil.

PUBLIC COMMENT
- Doritt Miller, Assistant County Administrator informed that Palm Beach County
has a small business grant. The deadline to submit application is June 12,
2020 at 11:59 a.m. ltis not a loan; it is a grant for businesses that were close
due to Covid.
DISCLOSURES

- No disclosures

CONSENT AGENDA

- No consent agenda

REGULAR AGENDA

. The COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

(Program)

The agenda item was introduced by Mr. Michel. The COVID-19 crisis had forced small
businesses to face many obstacles in the last few months. Executive Orders by the
governor to control the spread of the virus have resulted in business closures, reductions
in services, disruptions in inventory supply chains, impacts to cash flow, and payroll
deficits. This Program is intended to support the retention of small businesses vital to the
overall economic health of the redevelopment area, protect and support capital
improvements undertaken or planned by the CRA, and to prevent the furtherance of sfum
and blight conditions, pursuant to the goals and objectives of the Westgate CRA
Community Redevelopment Plan.

Program Description: The CRA will provide businesses with 25 or fewer employees up to
$5,000 in an interest free loan. If the business can demonstrate compliance with the
Program and that the loan was used towards rent, payroll, utilities, inventory expenses,
and/or upgrades to technology to facilitate remote working, within 1 year of the loan date,
the loan will be forgiven, and the business will not be required to repay the loan. Loans will
be awarded on a first-come, first-served basis. Loan recipients wiil be required to sign a
promissory note to ensure compliance with the Program, loan terms, and conditions. The
Westgate CRA has sole discretion to determine compliance with the Program, loan terms,
and conditions sufficient {o allow forgiveness of the loan.

A Board discussion ensued after the presentation. The Board fixed a total amount of
$150,000 to be spent on the program. The Board also adjusted the eligibility criteria to only
permit businesses that were in existence on January 1, 2020, and businesses that have
at least two full time employees fo participate in the program.

Staff recommended that the Board authorizes the implementation of the Program.

| X



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting
June 08, 2020

Page 3

VIil.

IX.

It was moved by Mr. Lewis and seconded by Ms. Benitez to approve the
implementation of the Program. The motion passed unanimously (5-0)

The regular meeting was suspended at 5:30p.m. to conduct Board nomination. Ms.
Haggerty nominated Mr. Ronald Daniels to fill Seat #6. No other nominations were
offered. Nominations will be sent to the Board of County Commissioners for their
consideration.

Election of Board Chair and Vice-Chair

In accordance with the CRA By-Laws, Chair and Vice-Chair are elected for a period of one
year. Election for the Board Chair and Vice-Chair should be held every year and the result
forwarded to the Palm Beach County Board of County Commissioners for formal approval.

It was moved by Ms. Haggerty and seconded by Mr. Lewis to elect Mr. Daniels as
Board Chair and Ms. Rufty as Vice-Chair. The motion passed unanimously (5-0)

STAFF REPORTS

Ms. Pennell reported to the Board the Oswego Parks has past final inspection. Staff is
working on the closeout.

Mr. Michel reported to the Board that the Park on Bridgeman and Florida Mango has been
completed.

Mr. Michel reported to the Board that the TPA grants for Cherry Road was approved. The
grant will cover construction cost; the WCRA will pay for design and construction
administration.

AJOURNMENT

It was moved by Ms. Rufty and seconded by Ms. Benitez to adjourn the meeting.
The meeting adjourned at 6:01p.m.

Administrative Assistant, Westgate CRA

Mai Bui

1>



Westgate CRA Board Meeting
July 13, 2020

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Auiumn Ridge
1580 & 1610 N. Congress Avenue
PCNs 00-43-43-29-00-000-3160; 3180
Contirol No. 2001-00056

WCRAO Density Bonus Program & WCRAQO TCEA Recommendation
for a106-Unit Multifamily Mixed-Use Development

Location Map

Page|1
Westgate CRA Board Meeting

July 13,2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra,org

4



I"P,’] nrp

ann

WESTOATEBE

RIS

Project Qverview:

The +/-3.58-acre site is located on the east side of Congress Avenue south of Westgate Avenue. The site
consists of 2 contiguous narrow parcels which back onto a drainage lake privately owned by the
Lakeside Mobile Home Park. The site has split zoning: the parcel to the north is zoned Residential
Multifamily medium density (RM) and has a small single family dwelling; the larger parcel to south is
zoned Commercial General (CG) and is vacant. Both parcels have a Commercial High with an underlying
residential future land use designation of 8 du/acre (CH/8). The parcel to the south was approved in
2002 for a vocational school/non-profit assembly use in Res. #R-2002-0835, but the project didn't move
forward, and all entitlements have expired. The site is located within the boundaries of the Urban
General (UG) Sub-area of the WCRAQ. Directly to the north of the site is a 7.5-acre vacant assemblage
approved for a 198-unit market rate multifamily development called the Greene Apartments; the
project is currently in permitting. To the south is an established commercial office-warehouse
development. The site is in the U/S Tier as well as in the Revitalization and Redevelopment infill Overlay
(RRIQ), Urban Redevelopment Area Overlay (URAQ), and the CCRT area.

Landmark Companies, the contract purchaser {dba Autumn Ridge, LLC), is a Miami-based
workforce/affordable housing developer with several successful muitifamily projects in South Florida
including the recently constructed Dunbar Village in West Palm Beach, as well as Westgate Plaza, an 80-
unit seniors affordable housing development built in 2012 on Westgate Avenue. Autumn Ridge is a 106-
unit multifamily seniors-only Low Income Tax Credit (LITC) rental development comprised of 1 and 2
bedroom units in a 5-story building, for a total GFA of 108,989 sf, including a small 1,100 sf ground floor
ancillary commercial retail space; 54 one-bedroom units and 52 two-bedroom units are proposed. A
recreation space, open to the public, is also included as a site amenity. To streamline entitlements, avoid
tripping the development and public hearing approvals thresholds, and to achieve the desired density,
the applicant is requesting 77 WCRAQ density bonus units. These additional units may be approved by
the DRO if the increase does not exceed 22 dwelling units per acre; this project is requesting an
additional density of 21.6 du/ac.

Summary of Request:
The applicant proposes to develop a 106-unit multifamily seniors-only LITC rental development with an
1,100 sf commercial retail space on a +/- 3.58-acre site. The subject application requests a
recommendation of approval from the Westgate CRA Board for the proposed development pursuant to
include the following:

1. An allocation of 77 units from the unit pool of WCRAQ Density Bonus Program; and,

Page|2
Wesigate CRA Board Meeting
July 13,2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 s www.westgatecra.org

|5



UNRUDNIRE i S

2. An allocation of 610 trips per day, 38 am peak hour trips and 50 pm peak hour trip from the
WCRAO Transportation Concurrency Exception Area (TCEA) trips pool.

CRA Staff further recommends DRO site plan approval provided the project complies with the
architectural and supplementary standards of Art. 5 and the WCRAO, and demonstrates that the criteria
for cbtaining WCRAQ density bonus units has been met pursuant to the following:

1. The minimum frontage requirement for the UG Sub-area of 60% is met (including exceptions for
ULDC required site elements);

2. A public plaza, with a minimum size of 800 sf and 25 feet in width, including but not limited to
public art, fountains, pergolas, clock tower, and public seating areas is provided and is accessible
by the public; and,

3. A minimum of 40% of the projects allowed bonus density is reserved for affordable housing.

Staff Analysis:
A development application is reviewed by the CRA for general conformity to WCRAO sub-area PDR’s,

design guidelines, and other overlay standards. Our site plan review and comments are preliminary,
since the Zoning Division and other County departments conduct a separate, more extensive review of
the site plan and related application documents via the DRO or Public Hearing process. While the
primary objective of the CRA’s review is to consider appropriateness of use and consistency with the
intent, goals, and policies of the CRA Redevelopment Plan, Staff must contemplate projects in the CRA
area in a way that facilitates development and redevelopment, but also with a critical eye that considers
the larger picture and how a project will impact the community over the long term.

Consistency with the WCRA Redevelopment Plan &and the WCRA Overlay

WCRAQ property development regulations were established to encourage a pedestrian friendly
environment, street presence, and mixed use developments that reinforce the smart growth principles
of the CRA Redevelopment Plan and the County’s Comprehensive Plan. The UG sub-area is envisioned as
an area that allows for mixed use development with mare intense commercial and residential uses,
including multi-story towers where feasible. Mixed use is preferred in the UG sub-area but it is not
required. While it is unlikely that a seniors-only income restricted rental development on Congress
Avenue will be a catalyst project for the redevelopment of the CRA district, the importance of providing
affordable seniors housing in a moment of national economic uncertainty cannot be understated. Many
seniors have been adversely impacted by the Covid-19 crisis. By including a retail component, which is
proposed be open to the public, the project becomes more consistent with the intent of the sub-area to

Pagel3
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
July 13, 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

16



provide mixed use with intense residential development. LITC projects are extremely competitive and
the 2020 cycle expires in October. The project must be supported by the local Jurisdiction and must also
not require public hearing entitlements in order to be built. To further streamline the process for the
applicant and bypass the need to rezone the commercial piece, the agent argues that split
residential/commercial zoning is consistent with the intent of the UG sub-area of the WCRAD where
mixed use is the preferred redevelopment; multifamily and townhouse developments are permitted by
right in non-residential zoning districts where mixed use is permitted. Further, SB 1339, recently signed
in to law by the Florida Governor, allows the development of affordable housing on any parcel of land
zoned residential, commercial or industrial. This legislation will enable affordable housing projects
throughout the State to be expedited. Ultimately, the PBC Zoning Division will determine whether a
rezoning is necessary; if so, the project will not move forward this year.

WCRADO Density Bonus Program (DBP)

The Housing Element of the Comprehensive Plan sets aside 1,300 bonus density units for the Westgate
CRA area. To date 52 DBP units have been utilized (Westgate Plaza) and 138 DBP units have been
pledged (Greene Apartments). To achieve the 106 units needed for this project, 77 units from the CRA’s
density bonus pool are requested to be allocated. The 3.58-acre site has a permitted density of only 8
dwelling units per acre which is 29 units by right. Additional density from the CRA’s bonus pool increases
the density per acre to 29.6 units. Of those 77 units allocated from the bonus pool, 40% or 31 units must
be set aside as affordable.

To qualify for WCRAO density bonus units, a number of criteria must be met. A project in the UG sub-
area must meet three (3) of six {6) criteria outlined in the WCRAO's standards. Based primarily on site
design, the applicant has chosen to comply with the following criteria:
1. Minimum frontage requirements based on WCRAO sub-area PDR’s. 60% building frontage is
required in the UG;
2. ..a public plaza, with a minimum size of 800 sf and 25 feet in width, including but not limited to
public art, fountains, pergolas, clock tower, and public seating areas; and,
3. A minimum of 40% of the projects allowed density is reserved for affordable housing.

In addition, the WCRAQO conditions the distribution and lifespan of affordable units through its
Affordability Standards:
i. All units required to be affordable shall be designed with a compatible exterior as other
units within the development, and may be clustered or dispersed throughout the project;

Pagel 4
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
July 13,2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ®= West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

1"



1

Hnﬂ

ii. Affordable units shal! be offered for sale or rent to very low thru middle income households
based on the County's AMI for any given year;

iii. Prior to DRO approval the applicant shall record a Covenant binding the entire project which
identifies each required affordable unit. These units are to be sold or rented to only very-
low thru middle income households for a minimum number of years. The Covenant shall
provide for monitoring or compliance requirements based on the County’s WFH program.
The applicant has included a draft Covenant with this application. The applicant is required
to record the covenant prior to final DRO approval.

PBC Workforce Housing Program (WHP) Requirement

Workforce housing targets households earning 60% - 140% of the Couhty’s published. AMI {average
median income) for any given year. The workforce sector (teachers, nurses, police officers, firefighters)
has been chronically overlooked in the past and as a result the County has adopted a mandatory
inclusionary zoning policy that requires that a certain number of units in any medium to large scale
residential project be set aside and offered for rent or sale to households that meet the workforce
housing criteria. Since the applicant will utilize the maximum of 8 units per acre density allowed by the
site’'s CH/8 FLU designation, residential projects exceeding 10 units must reserve 5% of the standard
density units and 16% of the additional units up to the maximum density for workforce housing. For this
project, 3 units for workforce housing based on a maximum density of 8 units per acre are required to
be reserved pursuant to the Art. 5 of the ULDC in addition to the 40% units that must be affordable to
receive additional density from the CRA. '

Workforce housing should not be confused with affordable or low-income housing,. which targets an
AMI of 50%-80%; very low is 30% of AMI. This LITC project proposes almost 80% of the units to be 60-
80% of AMI or less, with the remaining 20% to be above 80% AMI. The Westgate CRA area has a very
large concentration of households which are low and very low income; as of 2014, the median annual
income was $34,302. Only 20% of households earn an income that can be classified as moderate or
above moderate.

WCRADO Property Development Regulations

Individually the parcels have a relatively small frontage, however combined the frontage of the site is
259 linear feet. The UG has a 60% building frontage requirement and, allowing for required site
elements such as setbacks, access, sidewalks, buffer widths, the frontage must be on the build to line of
10-25 fi. Based on the preliminary site plan, the minimum reguirement is met in_compliance with the

Pagel5
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
July13.2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33402 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

1€



=

I lvﬂ nrp

ﬂnﬂ

WESTGATEBELVEDERE HF];\'[ES |

(MR RRI Rl PPl BN

recommendation criteria for WCRAQ density bonus units. Generally, despite the expanded setback from
the ROW, the frontage provided provides good massing and street presence. The 1,100 sf retail space is
located along the street; a minimum depth of 30 ft. is required in the UG. The maximum building height
in the UG is 240 ft. or 20 stories; the multifamily building is 5 stories in height.

e
| — ] — Proposed east or
:[_q E [ EI 1 L street-facing (Congress
E :[]_:]n O mnom - Ave) facade
0D oEim .-
[ i ‘ I Ono -

e

Although the site has an area of 3.58 acres, buildable land is minimized due to the poor soil quality near
the retention lake at the rear or west of the site. Some fill has been added to the site by the current
owner to reduce ‘muck’ and maintain land value. However, this condition has forced the entire site
design west towards Congress Avenue limiting building placement to accommodate required parking. A
build teo line of 10 ft. to 25 ft. is required in the UG and a 25 ft. building setback has been provided. Side
(min. 10 ft.) and rear (min. 25 ft.) setbacks are provided to code standards. The WCRAOQ stipulates that
the primary entrance orientation be from the street. Access to the leasing office and the retail space are
from Congress Ave. A secondary access has been provided at the rear of the building to access the lobby
and elevators.

A landscape plan has not been provided but must be at building permit. ROW and incompatibility buffer
widths are indicated on the site plan and do comply with code. The applicant utilized a WCRAQ provision
to reduce the recreational open space required by the Parks and Recreation Department; .36 of an acre
is provided immediately to the rear, extending to the south side of the building and will include
landscaping, pathways, and a publicly accessible seating area. These elements must incorporate the
minimum public open space element required by the WCRAQ to receive WCRA approval for the density
bonus units. Most WCRAO landscape deviations do not apply in the UG, but side foundation planting

Page |6
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
Julyi3, 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

| 1



may be eliminated and relocated on site where a build to line is required pursuant to approval of an ALP
by the DRO.

Preliminary ground level floor plan
{snapshot of common areas and retail
space)

A EOHARER

i

Architecture & Design

The applicant has provided conceptual architectural elevations and floor plans for the building design.
WCRAO regulations reguire a porch or balcony for all units on each floor of a multi-family development,
and regardless of the project’s rental demographic, must be provided, or a variance sought. As a mixed
use project, compliance with the standards of Art. 5, as well as WCRAO architectural and supplementary
standards will be required. The architecture incorporates a modern aesthetic with recesses and
projections in contrasting colors for architectural interest, however, CRA staff recommends
modifications to the street-facing elevation that would minimize attention to the residential stairwell.
The main huilding color is white with gray accents. A clean, neutral color schematic is increasingly
popular in newer downtown West Palm Beach construction. The proposed design is complementary to
the architecture of the Greene Apartments to the north.

Pagel?
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
July13,2020

1280 N, Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ® West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

A0



IHP/‘ nnn

nnn

VESIGIEAELEDRERDNES

Conceptual
architectural
rendering of
south facing
elevation

Parking
WCRA overlay regulations provide a substantial reduction from residential parking requirements. Article

6 requires two (2) parking spaces per unit (one bedroom or more), plus 1 space per 4 guests for multi-
family developments. WCRAO parking deviations for residential projects (Table 3.B.14.1) allow the
required number of parking spaces to be reduced to 164 including guest spaces; 174 spaces have been
provided, over-parking the site by 10 spaces. Bike rack parking areas have been provided and ADA
compliant spaces have been provided directly adjacent to the building.

Drainage Considerations

Like the vacant parcels to the north of this site, development interest in this segment of Congress
Avenue has fluctuated over time. Due to some unique physical challenges, many developers have
become discouraged as due diligence progresses. While the larger of the two parcels have been mostly
cleared, the north parcel is heavily vegetated and the land historically prone to water collection at the
rear as it slopes toward the retention area. Drainage is problematic since storm water cannot be
directed to the privately owned retention lake, and for a large scale development project, it is difficult to
design a project to sufficiently store stormwater on site. Most importantly, since Westgate is within the
C-51 drainage basin, compensating floodplain storage is also required by South Florida Water
Management District (SFWMD). This means that to mitigate the impact of lost site permeability as a
result of development, permeable vacant land for the storage of storm water must be permanently
secured and dedicated for that singular purpose. In the case of a development that covers a 3.58-acre

Page|8
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
July 13,2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = Woest Palm Beach, Florida 33405 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

Al



PN
-t

| nnn
IlV'I npn

WESTOATEBELVEDERE HOMES

B O O L Y ST R

site, the compensating storage requirement is significant. The applicant is utilizing all available land to
allow the site to function with the number of units necessary to meet their pro forma. To ensure a
successful outcome, the project will require additional land as retention to guarantee off site
compensating floodplain storage requirements can be met. A drainage statement has been included
with the application and indicates that legal positive outfall to the L-2 canal is available by way of the
Congress Avenue drainage system. Compensation for flood storage can be accommodated on additional
properties. Storm water management through the use of exfiltration piping will be used to meet
retention requirements.

Traffic & Vehicular Access

A traffic statement requests an allocation of 610 trips per day to and from one access driveway; 38 am
peak hour trips and 50 pm peak hour trips, from the WCRA’s Traffic Concurrency Exception Area (TCEA)
pool. The statement also indicates that project build-out is anticipated in 2023. It should be noted that
the applicant may have to provide a mass transit easement on Congress Avenue should it be required by
Palm Tran. Future cross access between sites is a requirement of the URAO and may be applicable to
this project.

Staff Recommendation:

The proposed use and site plan is consistent with the purpases, goals, objectives and policies of the
Comprehensive Plan, particularly the Provision of Affordable Housing outlined in the Housing Element.
The project will be beneficia! to the community, will enhance the character of the Congress Avenue
corridor by eliminating an out of place single family home and developing vacant land, and will provide
much needed affordable and workforce housing units. This project comes at a time when the housing
market is seeing a lack of supply of rental units that could be considered affordable by a large
percentage of the population coupled with increasingly inflated sales and rental rates across the County.

CRA Staff recommends approval of a 106-unit multifamily seniors-only LITC rental development with an
1,100 sf commercial retail space on a +/- 3.58-acre site. The subject application requesis a
recommendation of approval from the Westgate CRA Board for the proposed development pursuant to
include the following:
1. An allocation of 77 units from the unit pool of WCRAO Density Bonus Program; and,
2. An allocation of 610 trips per day, 38 am peak hour trips and 50 pm peak hour trip from the
WCRAQ Transportation Concurrency Exception Area (TCEA) trips pool.

Pagel9
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
July 13,2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

A2



CRA Staff further recommends DRO site plan approval provided the project complies with the
architectural and supplementary standards of Art. 5 and the WCRAO, and demonstrates that the criteria
for obtaining WCRAO density bonus units has been met pursuant to the following:

4. The minimum frontage requirement for the UG Sub-area of 60% is met {including exceptions for
ULDC required site elements);

5. A public plaza, with a minimum size of 800 sf and 25 feet in width, including but not fimited to
public art, fountains, pergolas, clock tower, and public seating areas is provided and is accessibie
by the public; and,

6. A minimum of 40% of the projects allowed bonus density is reserved for affordable hcusing.

Pagel10
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
July13.2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 56/1.640.8181 » www.westgatecra.org

23



PALM BEAGH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORM £ 01

FACH Palm Beach County Zoning Division
R oq?i 2300 N. Jog
£ 2 Road
. * West Palm Beach, Florida 33411

LLopot Phone: (561) 233-5200

FAX: {561) 233-5165

LPUBLIC HEARING PROCESSES:

O O O OooOd

g
]
(W)
(I
O

O

To allow an Official Zoning Map Amendment from Zoning District io Zoning District
With a Concurrent Land Use Amendment from Land Use to Land Use
To allow a Class A Conditional Use (CA) fora
To atlow a Class B Conditional Use {CB) fora
To allow a Development Order Abandonment of Resolution No:______ which allowed
To allow a Development Order Amendment to a previously approved:
[J coz [3 pPDD [J ClassA [J ClassB O
[OJ to modify and/or delete Conditions of Approval [ to add and/or delete land area
[ toreconfigure the [J Master [] Site [] Subdivision O to add and/or delete units
[J Landscape [JRegulating Plans [ Sign [0 to add, delete, or modify uses
[} toadd and/or delete square footage [ to add access points
O to restart the commencement clock
O to
To allow a Type 2 Variance: (Submit Form #43 Variance Supplemental} O cConcurrent O standalone
To allow a Subdivision Variance: (Submit Form #43 Variance Supplemental) [J Concurrent [[] Standalone
To allew a PO Deviations (Submit Form #92 PO Deviaticn) from Article(s)
To allow a Type 2 Waiver: (Submit Form #19 Waiver Supplemental) O concurrent [I standalone
To allow a Unique Structure in the Zoning District
Other

| DRO ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESSES: |

[l
i

o0on0

O oo o ad

0

To allow an Expedited Development Review Officer approval (DROE) {within 2 months of BCC/ZC approval)
To allow a Use subject to Development Review Officer (DRO) approval for a 108 uni mutfamiy resiantial preject

To allow a Type 2 Concurrent Review {(Zoning and Land Development)

To allow a Type 2 Concurrent Review (Zoning and Building)

To allow a Type 3 Concurrent Review (Zoning, Land Development and Building)
[ Subdivision with Required improvement O subdivision without Required Improvement
[J Projects that do not require platting

To allow an Administrative Modification of a Plan approved by the ZC / BCGC / DRO for

To allow a Subdivision

To allow a Transfer of Development Rights (Submit Form #16 TDR Supplemental):
To allow a Type 1 Waiver {Submit Form#19 Waiver Supplemental) from Article for,

To allow an Administrative Abandonment of

Other

General Application — Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes Revised 01/31/2018

Page 1 of 4 Q Weh Format 2015



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION

FORM # 01

2. PROPERTY INFORMATION (* Required Fields)

A. *Property Control Number (PCN):
(List additlonal PCN(s) on separate sheet}

00-43-43-29-00-000-3180; 00-43-43-28-00-000-3160

B. *Control Number: 2001-00056

C. *Control Name : Carpenters Union

D. Application Number: TBD

E. Application Name: Autumn Ridge Apartments
F. Project Number: TBD

G. *Gross Acreage: 3.58

H. Gross Acreage of affected area: N/A

.  *Location of subject property:
(proximity to closest major intersection/ road)

E. side of N. Congress Ave. approx. 625' north of intersaction of Cherry Rd. & N. Congress Ave.

J. *Address:

1580 & 1610 N Congress Avenue

K. Subdivision Name: NIA
L. Plat Name and Number: N/A
M. *BCC District: 2

3. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Current Property Owner(s) Name: See attached property owners list

Address: City: State: Zip:
Phone: FAX:

Cell Phone: Email:

Applicant's Name (if other than property owner(s) : Autumn Ridge, LLC

Address: 3050 Biscayne Boulevard, Suite 300 City: Miami State: FL Zip: 33137
Phone: Please contact agent Fax: N/A

Cell Phone: N/A

Email: Please contact agent

Check ( ) here if Applicant is a contract purchaser. Consent is required from the contract purchaser if a contract is pending to
purchase the subject property. Home Owners Assaciation (HOA) or Property Owners Association (PQA) consant will
be required if subject property is under common ownership or request is to modify any aspect of the project which applies to the
entire davelopment (i.e. condition of appraval, internal roadway, ete.).

Agent:* Josh Nichols, LEED Name of Firm: Schmidt Nichols

Address: 1551 N Flagler Drive City: West Palm Beachq  giate; FL Zip: 33401
Phone: 561.684.6141 Fax: N/A

Cell Phone: N/A Email: inichols@snlandplan.com

Agent:* Name of Firm:

Address: City: State; Zip:
Phaone: FAX:

Cell Phone: Email:

* All correspondence will be sent to the Agent(s) unless otherwise specified.

4. ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW

This application is subject to the requirements of Article 5.C, Design Standards and request review of the proposed
elevations concurrent with:

Type 1 Projects Requiring BCC Approval

Type 2 Projecis Requiring ZC Approval

Type 3 Projecis Requiring DR or Site Plan Approval

Type 4 Projects Requiring Building Permit Appraval

Revise previously approved elevations

Nen-conforming structures that are subjectto Article 5.C, Percentage of renovations

aoooxcOooO

Approval for a Green Architecture (Type 1 Waiver, Art5.C.1.E.3)

[ Approval for Unique Struciure, Art.5.G.1.E.2
Note: All applicaticn documents shall be consistent with the current Technical Manual, refer to the Zoning Web Page.

General Application — Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes

Page 2 of 4

Revised 01/31/2018
Web Format 2015

L5



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORM # 01

5. ZONING AND FUTURE LAND USE

Current Zoning District: CG & RM Proposed Zoning District:  [CG & RM
Current Future Land Use: |CH/8 Proposed Future Land Use: | CH/8
Tierr @ WS [OREX [OAGR [J GLADES Ovetlay (Special Study Area): | WCRAQ

6. USE/DENSITY /INTENSITY
Existing Use: Vacant Proposad Use: Mutlifamily residential
Existing Square Footage: | 2,460 s.f. Proposed Square Foolage: |110,025
Proposed Number of Units: | 106

-

Existing Number of Units:

7. ADJACENT PROPERTIES

Identify surrounding Future Land Use and Zoning District. Include existing/approved square footage or number of dwelling
units, type of units and density.

Adjacent |FLU Zoning Existing Approved Resolution
Property | Designatio | District Use Use Control No. No
NoRrTH CHR® RM Vacant 1o unk mulifemi 12016-00052!  N/A
SOUTH CH/8 CG OfficefWarehouse | Office/Warehouse | 1990-00040(1991-0262
EAST HR-8 RM Residential_lk-}r:‘I::ufactured N/A N/A N/A
WEST CH/8 CG Office/Warehouse/Retail | Office/RetalllWarehouse | 4 9070003 | 1997-0524

8. ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS

. _The site is generally cleared and disturbed lands with some native trees as
General Vegetation Statement: i, ified on a tree survey that will be mitigated according to PBC standards.

Current Grade/Elevation: Approx. 13' NAVD

Proposed Grade/Elevations: Approx. 13' NAVD

Yes ] Na If yes; submit Approval to Protect Native Vegetation
Application to ERM. Application available from the ERM Permit Center-PZB

if yes; submit Wellfield Protection Affidavit available from

Is removal of vegetation required?

Is site in a Wellfield protection zone? [ Yes [J No

PZB-EBM.
1s removal or relocation of trees[g] Yes [ No If yes; submit a Tree Survey, Analysis and Justification, also
required? submit a Site Plan with the Tree Survey overlaid for approval by PZ8 - ERM

. [Heallh Department: In Justification Statement, under heading "Hazardous Material”, address type and amount of:
1}all industrial, manutacturing, special or hazardous waste that may be generated; 2) aitborne pollutarts that may be
generated (i.e. dust or other unconfined particulates such as NOx, 80x, CO, VOC's, heavy metals, etc.); and, 3} any
special handling of solid waste that may be required.

9, COMPLIANCE

0 Is property in compliance with all previous conditions of appraval and applicable Code
ves @ NO Requirements? |f no, please explain in the Justification Statement

Is the property currently the subject of Code Enforcement action? If yes, provide Code

YES O NO & Enforcement Case Number:

Will the request require modification to a recorded plat or plat with Technical Compliance? If yes,

YES [ NO explain in the Justification Statement

Is the subject property an existing legal lot of record? If no, submit Legal Lot Review application

]
YES NO O | 5 the Zoning Division

Do proposed improvements exceed 35% of the improved value of existing structure? If yes,
vEs B  NO U | comply with Article 1.F - Nonconformities

i 10. CONCURRENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL INFORMATION

LD Drainage Review #: N/A Plat Name / No: /A

RAW Construction #: /A BUILDING Permit #: VA
General Application ~ Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes Revised 01/31/2018
Page 3 of 4 Web Farmat 2015

b



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION

FORM # ¢1

11. PROPOSED USE DETAILS
Number of Phase
Building Name Use Units Name Outparce!
1 Multifamily N/A 108 N/A N/A
Residential
12. CONCURRENCY
Concurrency Reservation Concurrency Equivalency [ Concurrency Exemption ]
A. Concurrency Case Number: [N/A
B. Water Provider: PBC
C. Waste Water Provider: PBC
D. Drainage District: LWDD
E. Traftic: PBC Traffic Trips Existing: NiA
F. Mass Transit: PBC Palm Tran Traffic Trips Proposed: (687
. I Number of Gross Peak Hour Trips:
G. Traific Capacity: {If greater than 30; a iraffic study will be required) 50
H. Public School: PBC
. Land Development: PBC
J. Public Health Provider: PBC Well /Septic tank : N/A
K. Parks PBC
L. Fire Rescue PBC
M. Solid Waste: PBC
N. Check the proposed means of achieving access from the development site to a point of legal positive
outfall for storm water discharged from the site:

[ Property is contiguous to a natural waterway, or a canal owned and operated by a water conirol district,

[CJ Property owner has legally established drainage rights to convey storm water through all intervening properties
between the development site and natural waterway or water control district canal,

Property abuts a road with a functioning drainage system, and property owner has oblained written
confirmation from the entity responsible for maintaining the road that the proposed development is eligible to
utilize the road drainage system, subject to meeting all permit requirements for drainage connection.

(] Other (specify):

1.

2.

Justification Statement: to address the purpose, project history, intent and design objectives

of this request, refer to Art.2.A.6.A.1 for the required information.

Status of Conditions of Approval (COA);

a. Provide a letter, which includes the status of all current Conditions of Approval.

b. Include the exact language of any modification{s) te any condition(s).

¢. If the application request requires a time extension for commencement of development or
recording a plat, then provide further explanation. (The explanation may be added to the
Justification Statement.)

Note: Please refer to PZB Zoning Website http:/discover.pbegov.org/pzb/zoning/ULDC/Articles.aspx

General Application — Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes
Page 4 of 4

for all ULDC Articles referenced in this document and for helpful information in the Technical Manuoal.

Web Format 2015

oy

Revised 01/31/2018



SCHMIDT
NICHOLS

B LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
A AND URBAN PLANNING

Justification Statement
Autumn Ridge Apartments
Palm Beach County, FL
Westgate CRA Application
Original Submittal: June 29, 2020

Project History

Schmidt Nichols {Agent), on behalf of S&M Services I, LLC and Vythia Tum & Thida
Tum Revocable Trust (Owners) and Autumn Ridge, LLC (Applicant), respectfully
requests your consideration of this application for Westgate CRA Density Bonus Pool
request for the proposed mixed use development consisting of 106 multifamily dweliing
units and 1,100 s.f. of commercial retail space. The subject property consists of two
parcels, totaling 3.58 acres located at 1610 N Congress Avenue (PCNs: 00-43-43-29-
00-000-3180; 00-43-43-29-00-000-3160). The property currently has a single family
home on the northern parcel and the southern parcel is currently vacant and mostly
cleared. The southern parcel (lot 3160) was previously approved for a vocational
school/non-profit assembly use for Carpenter's Union Local 130 in Resolution No. R-
2002-0835, dated May 23, 2002. This development was never constructed and all
associated entitiements have since expired. The northern parcel (lot 3180) has not been
part of a land use application of any kind.

The subject property is located within the Urban/Suburban Tier and currently supports a
Future Land Use (FLU) designation of Commercial High, with underlying High Density
Residential, 8 units per acre (CH/8). The subject property is also located within two
zoning districts, the north parcel being located in the Multifamily Residential (RM) district
and the south parcel being located within the General Commercial (CG) zoning district.
However, the subject property is also located within the Westgate Community
Redevelopment Area Overlay, more specifically the Urban General (UG) sub-area. This
overlay allows for mixed use development on this site which is consistent with its spilit
zoning designation, hence the proposed mixed use development.

Project Overview

The proposed project will include 108,989 s.f. of leasable area, 1,100 s.f. of which will
be devoted to commercial uses. Additionally, 0.36 acres of recreational space (10% of
total site area) is proposed for the use by residents which will include amenities such as
a pool deck. The retail space is proposed to be located at the northwest corner of the
building, facing N. Congress Avenue, with pedestrian connections to the right-of-way.
Drainage for the project is proposed to be achieved through legal positive outfall to the
L-2 canal via the Congress Avenue drainage system. The proposed development will
add to the newly budding collection of multifamily residential developments with rates
affordable to a wide range of income levels. Furthermore, the immediate vicinity of the
site consists of many vacant parcels, some of which contain invasive plant species. The

L&



' ':::: %

SCHMIDT
NICHOLS

5 LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
2 AND URBAN PLANNING

proposed development will result in a significant improvement to the N. Congress
Avenue corridor in the Westgate Redevelopment Overlay.

Below is a summary of the surrounding properties:

Adjacent | ... | o
- Lands. | o0 | foming -, Hees
CH/8 RM & CG Mixed Use (Multlfamlly Residential &
Commercial)
CH/8 RM Vacant (198 Multifamily Uses Approved)
CH/8 CG Office/Warehouse
HR-8 RM Lake/Residential Manufactured Homes
CH/8 CG Office/Warehouse/Retalil

Parking

Since the subject project is proposed to consist of a mix of residential and
commercial uses, the applicant proposes to utilize the reduced parking
requirements outlined in Table 3.B.14.1 - WCRAO Mixed Use and Residential
Parking Deviations. Based on this table, the parking is calculated below:

1 space / 1 bedroom unit @ 54 units = 54 spaces

1.5 spaces / 2 bedroom unit @ 52 units = 78 spaces

1 guest space / 4 units @ 106 units = 27 spaces

2.5 spaces / 1,000 s.f. commercial uses @ 1,100 s.f. = 5 spaces

Total parking requirement: 164 spaces

The applicant proposes 174 parking spaces which is in compliance with the

minimum requirement.

Workforce Housing

A




SCHMIDT
NICHOLS

‘it LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
SN AND URBAN PLANNING

The Applicant is proposing to utilize the maximum 8 units per acre density
allowed by the site’s HR-8 underlying FLU designation. As such, according to
Table 5.G.1.B, Workforce Housing Program of the ULDC, residential projects
exceeding 10 units must reserve 5% of the standard density units and 16% of the
additional units up to the maximum density for workforce housing. The subject
property is permitted to have 29 units based on standard density. Therefore, in
this case, the Applicant is required to reserve 3 units for Palm Beach County’s
workforce housing program based on a maximum density of 8 units per acre.

Additionally, the Applicant is required to reserve 40% of the requested WCRAO
Density Bonus Pool units for workforce housing. In this case, the Applicant is
requesting a density bonus of 77 units, resulting in 31 units being reserved for
workforce housing. In total, the Applicant is proposing to reserve 34 out of the
106 total proposed units for workforce housing.

Recreation

The proposed project is required by the ULDC to provide recreation space for
residents. The WCRAO has a specific formula for calculating the required size of
this recreation space which is equivalent to 1.25 acres of developed iand per 1,000
people population, based on 2.39 people per proposed unit. The Applicant is
proposing 106 units which, when multiplied times 2.39, equals 254 people. Given
this population, the Applicant is required to provide 0.32 acres of recreation space.
The Applicant is proposing 0.36 acres of recreational space which includes a public
outdoor amenity.

Requests
Below is a detailed overview of the Applicant’s requests as part of this application:

Request 1: Density Bonus Request to allow for a density bonus of 77 units for
a total of 106 multifamily residential units.

WCRA Density Bonus Request: Any proposed project that includes a request from
the Density Bonus Pool shall obtain a recommendation from the WCRA in
accordance with the standards of Art. 3.B.14.H.1.a, WCRAO Recommendation. A
project shall receive a recommendation for approval from the WCRA that meets
three of the following six factors for the UG sub-area.

Below are the three criteria that are being met by the proposed project:

1. The proposed project meets the minimum frontage requirements of Table
3.B.14.F, WCRAO Sub-area PDRs.

Response: The proposed project meets the minimum frontage requirement
of 60% as outlined in Table 3.B.14.F-9, WCRAO Sub-area PDRs. According

50



SCHMIDT
NICHOLS

" LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
2% AND URBAN PLANNING

to Note 8 of this table, properties with frontage on only one ROW may
subtract minimum required site features, such as ingress/egress driveways,
sidewalks to ROW, landscape buffer widths, and minimum setbacks from the
overall frontage length used in this calculation. Therefore, once calculated,
the overall frontage of the property is 204.56’. The overall length of the
proposed building fagade along this same frontage is 124’. Therefore, the
proposed project meets the minimum requirement by providing 60.6% of
frontage along N Congress Avenue.

2. A minimum of five percent of the gross lot area that is set aside for open space
with a public amenity or a public plaza, with a minimum size of 800 square feet
and 25 feet in width including but not limited to public art (not depicting advertising);
fountains of at least eight feet in height and sixteen feet in diameter; pergolas; bell
or clock tower; and public seating areas (not in conjunction with any restaurant
seating).

Response: The proposed project will consist of 0.36 acres of public open
space which includes the pool, neighborhood park areas behind the
proposed building frontage along N Congress Avenue. These areas consist
of approximately 10% of the overall site area.

3. A minimum of 40 percent of the projects allowed density is reserved for
affordable housing meeting the requirements of Art. 3.B.14.H.1.c, Affordability
Standards.

Response: 40% of the 77 bonus dwelling units being requested will be
reserved for affordable housing for Very-Low to Middle Income status
residents. This results in a total of 31 dwelling units reserved for affordable
housing. The Applicant is also proposing to reserve 3 additional workforce
housing units to be in compliance with the standard ULDC for a total of 34
workforce housing units (31 + 3). See the “Workforce Housing” sub-section
below for more details.

Request 2: Exception from Traffic Concurrency Standards

The proposed multifamily residential project is located within the Westgate Transportation
Concurrency Exception Area being located on the east side of Congress Avenue and the
south side of Westgate Avenue. Therefore, the proposed project is eligible for an
exception from the traffic concurrency standards. According to the Traffic Statement
prepared by Pinder Troutman Transportation Consultants (included with application), the
average daily trips for the proposed project is 687 with an AM peak total of 38 trips and a
PM peak total of 50 trips.

3



SCHMIDT
NICHOLS

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
A AND URBAN PLANNING

On behalf of the Autumn Ridge, LLC (Contract Purchaser), and the Owners, S&M
Services, LLC and Vythiya and Thida Tum Revocable Trust (Owners), Schmidt Nichols
respectfully requests your consideration of approval for this Bonus Density, and Traffic
Concurrency Exemption Request application for Autumn Ridge.

B



. .
Buildto Line 25~|_|
. LOCATION MAP
L FLU: CHHR-8
Base Building r.:n.// & Foundatian Zoning: RM
. side Planting for 40% Use: Residental - . il
10° Ltility Easement of facade Typ. 0" Type 1 Incompalibitity 10" Type 1 Incompaliility
~I S85SASE 600.00° Butfer wis' ht Fence on PL Butfer wig" ht Fance on _u_./

e e \Mlllllr_m‘ﬁl

L/
=

/7
i

2 xcs.._//,
Landscapa B
P Buffer [ Bike xmnj m X
Propased Menument - | h { m n —l— 7} _ U |—|
Sign
B Y _ o NICHOLS
| S Retall ! LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
[ 5d | twoss | AND URBAN PLANNING
FLUL: CHHR-S Zx | Ao Bike fack = 1551 W, Flagler Dr, Sz 102
Zonihig: CG a2 ] | Sstortes [ —— 1,
! 5]
Use: Cemmercial .ﬁ £ o _ ) 74508, 25 &
o= 5 == | 2 Hﬁn«zﬂﬁu%;ﬁ.ﬂ: com
S50 &2 i (FES [T g
‘ i85 s —1 —) 18 o
Smx_m.mm_..ua:wo_/ﬁ R g '“ B FLU KRS
us er & N Zaning: RM
| il ™~ B L — Re i ) | Buse: Residenva
10" Sate Sight .. S r v @
Lines Typ. { i
L & Foundation —!
. Plaiing fof 40% |
~~ gffacada Typ. ]

10" Type 1 Incompatiblity [
FLU: CHHR-8 Butier wis' ht Fence on PL
Zaning: CG SITE TABULAR DATA

Use: Commercial [Rared catiors W A Mg
[Cortral Mrmer a0t |
mg|

[
| I —
| | & ==
il .
_ __ | +
I.T
|
!

g
lr__
!
|
!
|
|
|
|
|
!
i
!
|
[
i
I
é
Autumn Ridge
Palm Beach Co;nty, Florida

[ P L s B =)
iy Torieg Dkt o aml
[craciey wriRag)
1o Tamtn, Rt e
[Propecty Corimcl Humburs M 341 0t00-31 G0 3100
El cling e “Vacars & Singls Famlly 8 evlartind|
EE LA
[Tt Purmeet of Dovolion Uitz s
T8 3 e,
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT REQUREMENTS bhir 47 unes, e
= e [ 2 T e T
oHTNCT | men | mams | evoseraon | varm PN . T e FemedPrapasmd WHF
g = w | we | w . | w | ar o e Erafe
reor | gy | 900e- | wir | rmae | we | macssc | wx | e w | L) scdle: =
Daslgn By: oW
Drawn By: owe
Checked By. 18H
File Mo Eablec)
Job Ha. 038

REVISIONS 7 SUBMISSIONS
PCRAG: 3% of 138 ac. w T 387 il
peitnmined ]
T —— AMENDMENT STAMP ZONING STAMP
MR Y RN 1 AT DD OFR R 56
e
> =
i
e e
‘”u..iun-._...-li..‘l;n:li.
ot .:.Sm.nu -
e e moit : Preliminary
Pacyrla Farking Racura 3| -
S e Site
g = e e
° 157 ar or oo et Concurrancy hep st 1 U—m:
Scale 1"= 30-0" B o A ﬂ m ﬁ




AJAYNS Advannod
T4 ‘HOV3E Wivd 1S3M

JAVY SS3¥ONQD N OiBl % DBS!

Z50=05=195) x¥d / 1651~280-(155) Ikt

/6_7/

j)

T YOO ‘NOLYY V0B
001 NS = Ovad S30¥13 O06L
TR = JaLILIMOHY Y2500

DNIINONT AL

TONI '"FNEIHM B QI3AAVD

L

SHOSNIN

Ryt e

ENT

£

sl B - vOEOL 3O vis
2AEF A0S ONr] B3
S HIMOVM H ASHICT

“2OTLP SAUNYIS TOMIY GL IRYSE

HERISID MIRIH L JD AJAKT AMYONIOE DNCYLY i IFHL ARIED ARROH |

£531 20 J00n ‘SIIY S5 20 ‘AT IUKIDS KLGEH INIIEINGD ONY
VORI LINGGD HOVIE ATV HOWIE Mvd 1SR 0 u

]

STrred J0wNT20 B4
AYM A SIHOH ONY 3NNBAY SSTMOMOD HOJ AYN S0 LHOW ML 143073 ISNNDIE

TUOTIH SY (IIRISI AT VIS SHOM OHY LSV TH oMY
WNOS £r SHENADL ‘ST MOUDTS W dLYI0T ONY) 20 Tave MYIREY v TIY

T Towea

]
30 1NGd JHL L LT BOTY 90 SDNY.ISI ¥ "I ZEERTI HLMON IH0HL 3T

FONYLSK ¥ 'EZ NOUDES OITS S0 N S5 3el DHOTY LSW3 A1ZE0 HIBEON 30MGHL
v A NN MOV ATV ISYD OF JOKVH HINDS 7 dBSHADL CEZ MO
30 (% W) AEAHWD ASMAINON L 43 HINMIY (SWHINGS 3 1Y THOARD

SHOTIOS SY (DEROSI0 XY VIUHYL S0 ONGE

“IBROD INTHD Jet K0 XTI T 50 TLG0 3l K GABH0004 Sy G081 Fvd 5601

300 SIB00A ARG (BERnsX) ONY1 40 T0HYA LYHL 40 £.03) L334 ANS IS

L INGE YORTL ‘ALNIOY ROV YA 'LSI ¥ OMYH HLIOS TP dKSHAOL 62

HOUDYS 40 (X 'W'N) MILHWD (SMHIEON il Wirlisl IHYINGD ONY1 30 TOMYS ¥

iSY QEOROSI0 AT Wi red JuOm 23D 165 Fed TIEN M08 SROCITY DWW
W £0Z "ZL HONYA QMO OIX) MNVHYYA LYIL AD GLIANGD INGE SONV] JIOHW

]
OEAOL NG HOYIE P S0 SOMO3Y 8NG 3 0 ‘DRIl Jrg

£ AHENAGL 62 MALSTS 50 N ABYONNOR ATELSI JHL MO 1W0d ¥ 1Y SHNNIDNE
o Tawvd

FOTdEDEAT

At QAY) ZZ90GL = MOUNATD L OC-11-S 2 W LS ASAEWH
3L -5 A MONIE ALNGD HOYID ATvd FEDR0 ARG DL
U CEIVEE ORIV 1S3k IONIAY SSON00 N Oi§1 B 0BT SSTNOTY tum“u.m K]
g
MIEOI20  TUWE ZEIOZI OH THYA/ALNAAMGD i3 G190 366071 ON dvm vy
Inoransm 00a1 H{EES) CAYN 11 D) v, ¥ (QIYSKN) OC TINGZ 000U W
g
B0 ALHVE DRSS 3HI 0 INZNOD NILITH LOOHIM TUEHOUd 51 SHILNY

U ALY ANINOT L NYHL 231U A8 Sovn AIANE 01 SnOuTTX B0 SNOURDY L
“0iY207 IO I SHIUYONDL ONAODEINN 3

“ANATY 3y 4B
ICMONY HOWUTITIO Tl UM CUCOOV M T1 NOTHDM MAOHS .NOUJRISID B0 €

NN LSYD T el HINGS (v JoSmiy 'AZ MOLIZE 20 MY
ISIAIION 30 THT ISIM L O BAUYR JY MO DS SHonad v
' ¥

i
¥
i
]
8
:
¥
;
H
&
:
:
£
f

FALO T QY TOUI0 S04 AD OOMHATY 3408 EHDULONG JUL Ad 00:LL
1% OT02/BL/%D v JNImmNGD ¥ Hiae TSR0 AN HIGHD “Arrar)
b TN TeUDUVN &I 4B T IvHISEY BOM NI MIDIE SO0
MQUIAWTS QMY TINOSTLNM TISNGON UM ¥ IO TN 11RO 30 DHF
FHUNS Je, M0 OTen JON Brv O30l SHAOD Fnp O Jra AIRHNE L

TII0R

N

[FAUYN W IDYE LU Lo
Wiy S300) (1 T304 OL S¥) T58 2vd YIIZ M08 0003 WOUK M
1002 11 INTF CI02QI3H S1MEGY ININAOTID TIOHKIM DL IHIUN S0 DUON Y

[+ O]

M LN E LT 108 4504w K300) {1 TRV O3 S¥E 151 20vd ‘ST

2000 SN VIO 1 0I0K0TY INGNTILTY ININSOTAI0 MLVMUS YR
oy alliva THvI00 (Rrdnvad WLl LYKL 20 SNOUKIND) CAY Smell 3

{muod

LON 1LY 63003 TUS Hrd "85 Y008 SOwTl s M MO0k Orod

S5fei K SIAGRGADET Croy SOMTWAB BG4 SININDIORS WOVB) K Shtrl]
LINNOD KoY 3E WIYd 20 SMIHDISINNGS JINMOD J0 CHYGH ML &0 HOUNDSIH 5

SHOEIINT 10 JTRIEs

ont

(37¢28 0L LON)
d¥W NOIL¥301

aEsIns W sz

£ VN s
=t [LTE-2 SR Y
Sang wOWYL e
& LA )

£ WwL TR

-+ wWigt oz

* W LY

o LOULE T
0 Wazve oy
S wgyaT ey
RIOEI L -
a1 WidIwWED e
e wou mar
BN oy sy
e ey s
01 oy o
e Wou e
T wou e
e E T

3 FOWYAYE ST
SN oMYA vy
S FiTaYAY s
- FOuYAYE Ty
Sring noWYsY ey
St ang noWYSe oy
EEEENI"S nokYYl G
Y ntvavler e

<t nwvaE gk

5t O R sk

At Wid I SEte

i W4T b

< WONYAT ek

£ AL T

at nNav [

< nMYAN O

Y WA e

< nodva o

. WAIERYS SR
TN o
L] WIS SR

5 WATIYS 2

st wEwRY W

st YOI ke

5t VO Bl

<t WhAINED S

v WWdINEYS  fie

i AU sur

LY WWATNERYY  sub

st WWATNERYS  eub

it WWATNERYS b

i WIS b

st WWAINIRYY Tk

E WOVEENIRYS Ok

o wIWRos  enr

51 WIS T
oL WWAINEDYE e
oz e

& T

a TR

- sou e

A1 W e

- s wser

El e T
e wo  er
Sns sou s
" WWOTNOY  ekb

3 WOWYAT  WE
41 WNATNURYS  owv
o WA v

L WWdENEED  Swr
ESTNT WEYAT W
Y L TETE SR

5 AT Zry

) CoR iy

AANENS 3L %
DIHAYE90d0L ‘AdvANNOd

LYY Y

A0t e

bl

at
5t
STLUNE
4t
e 1ng
Rl

Lkhhhhhk’:bébibhbbh

Lt
B2 s

LU
SSas

Anvnny
AWV
AT
Rt
ANNTYNAY
ANNTIYNY
AN
ANNTEYNIY
ANNITYNHY
WRYDHIO
oo
oowre
nine A
ning oot
WU
WA AT
WK VIV
WITYAYT
WAV
T VAT
WA
WA
Wiyt
WA
L
Ay
wiTYa
e
gyl
gt
nitgrant
nig et
WUt
WA YA
WYY
W AT
nmavart
wiawan
W
WA
WA A
WA
W
Wyt
wiigward
Uy
AR
WTUYAY
T T
W e
WA
Wi
Wy
iR

£t
SLOLE WS
-t
St
%
%
KR0S
%

A
e AN
At
ST NS
%

LT
AN

we
[LTEA T
e vavr
nimevarr
A

A YA
AT v
"o

e

AU VAT

HIve 1IveRY
ATva VI
[
[

ATVa PR
Vo
WvAHNE
nnwvarr
v

g iy
[
[
WA TR
NMNOINKY

WAV

o
QHONTY JriaNL
GHONTY ML

jo N




]
| E
+nl el
f-iH
. AWV 135 (17 urTay
)5 A 417 7 Al o
{ an s > E
! $ MV B30 (24" RCP) al
- |+.. we. 03 {74y 1
W NV E3) (3 FOR) [l
[ R !
! &
+ 51
! il
) S
o 3 p
5l N 3
3 ) B
=l 1 W M
B 1 g .
1 ! H ¥
] ! 1
t 1 =]
[ SN NE
A _ HE
4 B2 1
RO S GRAFHIG SCALE 23
¥
pt 8 w3 wow  w 0
Niﬂ WATER —I.IIIII 1
Zng o jeone. uon o [ TCATGHT Twe -
s s e S { W 7EET } g [
P EL g o conc. o | 661 1w 30 FT. e =
3 & “ zZ g i
ds e E -
» 55 R "y vrry  SEBUSISE E0.00° - . . B8 T
,wu, Td ..umun SO ¥ g 2 o Le m mmmm
o= 2R - - .o k H Hg LR
[ i aay v o wEe g3
. /5. - oo P e R wheoal
g oy Jom, “o ABe5an 4 M b EEE
- wan oo poe S soe wiena] visse wsen visst ST et i m mm”md
o H x_|YE e E= BB
Pop.  fas ¢ & Ww s 3 sz s I 1 H5 328
tPancey 2)-] F wh tH s o R e men_.
. = s e oota? e .swm” o Q 8238
B g: -~ e s Taglls | b
b Z 2 AR wan e L @5y
Py i & o P an - s 3R &
2258 _ wot & o -
En ! Lo — T S 2 z ﬁm&
mwmm ] A »* " A & o ok emad® g - o ey I | O BNl
rll.n __W : .,- i, Tens Ty w8 (B )
_IZL M, L0 5 P | I AIA /
s ) L) Lk ~
o i i b a2 - » pi] | I /
R N e I o . z -
e || T < o o E &
L1 g ’ E » )
&5 8 i - & L
[t i b 1 =~
= 1 | |,
gk | E wne] Lo x
s=7 5 * wemr
& D C g = and "
- 9|l | 4 > g L
= ; = o s - »~ » H v
! z # .o [
_ - i [ Y _- W
§ » (v, 107" ravp 190dF [
o3| 3 o Ry - = m W
= i * TN }
> s _ N o o TV O e s d w _mw_ ©n
m A £ (e g Wave TeaE >
s N e,
sl 1] 4 #® ® z =i
S e Ex
~ curd = L o < A
3 I e Ee asaras sy eyl Ed a * 2oz
=l & s e wrel| Sty maimy ' o =
~ 4 a2 F = ! S w iz, Yo o, © - 3
s VI Y : Nt A Ao, e i N Lro
_ 1 - E At el T m
el . conc. NBB'45°35°W F00.00° H 3 %
h ‘._ Tt &S0 VT ORR (P} W BT [t cany
- Al | Pt ke o
o - T 3 %
t-sore _Il_
[t a ooy —
P.OR. (FAACH, 1 & FE a5
PARCEL 1 LISS GuT) [ory
35
EH
i
LEGEND
AP — AR CORRTINEA A= RHCHOR
ALLsa. - ALInrren = AACKALM PROENTER
gor  moroa B = cam eor
CLE, - CHAR LK FENCE N - CATCH 8ASN
= cone, = COMCRETE o = CLEmnOUT
= - B IEER § IR e
a0 PO, (P 1 LESS un) CUF.  — COWCAETE UTLITY POLE T~ MRE HIDAMNT
831 pomewnee G I %D
5 RANGE 43 € FRE - Mt Roce Gevanol & - rrossho i, vase
FPL = FLOMOA POWER & LGHT D — FOMER POLE
y, - wveal D - SuaTady uams
RR. — RRICATION - -
PB. = PLAT BOOK M- WALYE
PG - PagE W - waliR WETER
FOE po o gt 130 1 TREE/E M % § 8955
I CORNER 0° SECTION 29, ORG. - (Phewl BECRDS GO0k e
"3 B AW = AGHT-OF - WY [T
e v M
Whp I wopo PoMR POE
wus, - w000 UTUTY POLE
_ OF 2 SHEETS







MREIKENIS & ASSOCIATES, LLC

CONSULTING ENGINEERS 801 South Olive Avenue, Ste. 105
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
(561) 818-5381 ® www.reikenis.com

Drainage Statement for: Autumn Ridge
1580, 1610 N. Congress Avenue
Palm Beach County

June 10, 2020

Site Description
The Autumn Ridge preject is located on approximately 3.61 acres on the east side of Congress

Avenue, approximately halfway between Okeechobee Bivd and Belvedere Rd. The subject
property lies in South Florida Water Management District's C-51 East drainage basin. The site is
currently occupied by an older single family house, otherwise lightly vegetated with elevations
along the eastern portion of the site ranging from approximatsly 8.0 NGVD to 10.0 NGVD.

Site Drainage
Stormwater will be collected via network of inlets and piping within the vehicular areas. Water

Quality treatment and flood attenuation will be provided by exfiliration trench and underground
retention systems. Legal positive outfall to the L-2 Canal is available by way of the Congress
Avenue storm sewer system. Drainage design will address the following criteria:

Parking lot elevations set at or above the 5 year — 1 day flood stage
No off-site discharge up to the 25 year — 3 day flood stage except through an approved
control structure

s Legal Positive to the adjacent Congress Ave. storm sewer system.

s Building Finished Flocr Elevations set at or above the 100 year — 3 day (zero discharge)
flood stage

s  Water Quality Treatment volume in accordance with SFWMD and PBC criteria

¢ Allowable discharge per the SFWMD C-51 Basin criteria

»  Woaier quality treatment and flood attenuation within proposed exfiltration trench and
underground retention systems

» Drainage permits will be obtained from SFWMD and Palm Beach County prior {o
construction

« Compensating storage in accordance with SFWMD C-51 Basin criteria

The properiy is bounded on the east by a water body within the Lakeside of Palm Beach mobile
home park. SFWMD issued a Standard General Permit No. 5-04521-P on March 3, 2000 which
confirms that there is now planned encroachment of the L-2 extension excavation into the subject

property.

If you have any question regarding this application, feel free to contact me at 561.818.5381 or
Rick@Reikenis.com,

Sincerely,
'~ Digitally signed

Richard V byRichardv

. . . Reikenis
Reikenis - pate: 202006.10
s 15:01:04 -04'00"
Richard V. Reikenis, PE, NCEES, LEED AP
Florida Registration No. 26978 / CA 30827

2,7



. 9CO0CeCeCee0CeC0 00 00 0 00 0 0 0
Transportatlon Consultants 2005 Vista Parkway, Suite 111
Woest Palm Beach, FL 33411-6700

(561) 296-9698

Certificate of Authorization Number: 7989

June 18, 2020

Mr. Quazi Bari, P.E.

Palm Beach County Traffic Division
2300 North Jog Road, 3™ Floor
Woest Palm Beach, FL 33411-3745

Re:  Autumn Ridge - #PTC20-045
Dear Mr. Bari:

The purpose of this letter is to provide a traffic statement for the above referenced project to
determine if the proposed development meets the requirements of the Palm Beach County Traffic
Performance Standards. It is proposed to develop 106 affordable mid-rise apartment units with
1,100 SF of ancillary retail in Westgate. The site is within the Westgate Transportation Concurrency
Exception Area (TCEA) and is located on the east side of Congress Avenue south of Westgate Avenue
1580/1610 N. Congress Avenue as shown on Attachment 1. The Property Control Numbers (PCNs)
are: 00-43-43-29-00-000-3160 and 00-43-43-29-00-000-3180. The buildout of this project is
projected to be 2023.

Attachment 2 provides the daily, AM and PM peak hour trip generation for the proposed project.
Because the site is located within the Westgate TCEA, the development is allowed an exception from
the traffic concurrency standards. Therefore, the proposed project is in compliance with the
Countywide Traffic Performance Standards.

Attachment 3 provides the project traffic distribution. Driveway volumes are shown on Attachment
4,

Please contact me by phone or at atroutman@pindertroutman.com if you need any additional
information or have any questions.

Sincerely,

““ulllu”"

b, - Digitally signed by
ﬁ\ No.tsa0s “Andrea M Troutman
«;b :mem; '.":gr: Date 2020.06.18
TS 12:48:58 -04'00'

"'in::nnl“

Andrea M. Troutman, P.E.
President

!

*

et

‘ ‘ulllr,-,.’
f

Attachments

This item has been electronically signed and sealed by Andrea M. Troutman, P.E. on 6{18/20 using a Digital Signature. Printed
copies of this document are not considered signed and sealed and the signature must be verified on any electronic copies.

(2) g ?mder Troutmqn Consultlng. Inc

" Lotter Bari 20-045 6-18-20



J1d

NOILVYDOT 1D3[0dd
L AINAWHOVLLY

10dld NWNLNY

S+O-0Z
0z/67/8

‘SN

,/Aow ¥S) AATE NYIHLNOS \

\
N

\N) a¥ 3¥3a3IA13g

NVEL AYVLITIW

bz

1IS

~_

JAY FLYDLSIM

aATg9 3390HD3N0C

/

:| AV SSTAONOD

59



-womp3 o TUBHEAUSH AL ‘(L)) siseuiduy voneyodsue ) jo aImnsyl pue unod yaeag wied aunos (|}

05 6L LE 9 95 [44 143 %1€ 4 95 e 143 SIV10L
L4 [4 4 %2 |9 118 S Fl %0°0L L LL 9 S (Z5/8t) 1S 000°L/ 6'6 45 00lL'L 08 |le)ay
9y LL 67 %0 - | 9F Ll 67 %0 1 f44 gL 6T {6£/19) NA [ ¥#'0 snd 901 LZT | 751 piw - Allweg N [ERUSPIESY
ol | wmo uj (Dsdul | oL | wo ] sduy EE R u (1) 3)ey UoneIAUEY) dII) Ausumup  [apoD asn pue]
sdu] |ewispx3 maN Ag-sseg sdr} jeutaixy [euD)ty sduy eyl 1T}
pasodolg
INoH 7E3d Wd
8t 87 0L 1 [ /T LL - - 6L 8t LL SIVLOL
- - - %29 |1 1 - L %00 - L - L {8£/79) 45 000°L/ ¥6°0 45 qoL’L 0zg 11ERY
8t 8¢ oL %0 - | 8E 234 0L %00 - BE 414 413 (¥£/9TyNA/ 9£°0 sNd 9oL EZT | 951 I - Ajlwied 10l [eRUBpIsay
£10]. mo ) (1) sea] Jesol mno uy sdu) el no up (1) a1ey usnessuan duj Apisuajug apo) asn pue
sdii] jewsapg maN Ag-sseq sdu jewtaxa |euaau) sdig [ejo) 1Lk
pasodoig
. MOH 7ead WV
0L9 [44 £89 %6°E BT Sl STVLOL
Fa 4 %e9 | L Pl %0 0L Ll gL 45 000°'L / 19°'SZL 45 0011 078 (2]
£99 %60 - | E9s %S5 T L £15 na/ers snad 9L LZT | 2SR PIW - Ajued NN [ERUapISaY
sdup (1) sdu sdup sdu) T (1) ayey uonesauany duj Asuayu| apod asq) pueq
[eudagx] MaN Aq-ssed [eutapag [ewsagu| 1oL EH]
pasodoig
ATlva
uonesauan) diay
adpny uwnny
7 Juawipeny
azot/ILY

07-94-9 §¥0-0¢ ueD duy

O



Jld

NOILNGI¥1Sia DI44vdl 1D3(0O¥d

¢ INIWHDVLLY 1D5dld NWN.LNyv

S+o-0%
QzoL/Y

‘SN

™ {08 ¥S) QAT NYIHLNOS \

/

5671 /T[N

NYHL AAVLETIW

dd 343Aa3iA1ad

S

~_

%01t

2 /%09
%‘ JAY ALVDLSIM

%01
// %9 L

)
BO m adAl1g 33g0OHDIAN0

%0 L

%Y T

AV SSTADNOD

|

o



CONGRESS AVE

1@

7 {(20)

SITE

4 (14)
v‘

LEGEND

XX - AM Pk Hour Project Traffic
(XX) - PM Pk Hour Project Traffic
XXXX - Daily Project Traffic

N.T.S.

6/16/20
20-045

AUTUMN
RIDGE

ATTACHMENT 4
PROJECT DRIVEWAY VOLUMES

PTC

4L




WL OMagdzdS a2 LAAGL03Z% LUAMNOSY VY VY YYD SOINAZILLNZNAZS IMTMY OZPOSNUSONIDONZYL PALNIAGZMAD WNYY=Qlwel guaiobesseppeay=lopotumangemo/fionoBoqd ewqamsdpy

AjjoH
‘noA jjueyy

"patepasdde aq pinom }asyd ay) aypadxa o1 op pinod noA SupjiAuy

VYD WoJy popasy yosY) [e10) 08°816'SH6S

SISO He1s 00'0TZ'91¢S
994 udisag TO'6¥SOrSS

"Papaau JUNoWe 3y} pue s3s02 3y} Jo Alewuns e s) mojag “uSisap syl puny 01 yyD
Y3 Wouy I3y B paau 1siy [ 1yl op ol "I|qissod se uoos se uidaq Aew uBisap 3eyl 0s J3g N0 01 S1Y1 198 03 pasu am Sulpuny 3Y3 ¥SU 10U pue NPayIs 181 Suew

40 22ueyd e aaey o) "1o9foud s)y3 Joy BjnpPayds aassaI33e AjpwaUXe Ue 395 1snf sey 10g4 "1ralo1d anuany 21e8)sa Byl 10y a9)/adods ay) puy ases[d paydeny

CEHIE

4AdVAD UM NOW 4pd-0z ¥2 9 304 pue edods aebisem 096102
(A g) syuawyoene 72 0

‘<bionobgd@asoyin> 850y uOLO ‘<Bionobaqd@ueuruiss > ueueurs [eylays !<Bionobigd ®izzyN > 1Zzy unosepy {<BionoBaqd@Bunoklgs> Bunoy PIARC] DD
<BroaoBrgd@syoipg> |aURIN 297117:01

WV S5°LL 0Z02/72/9 Pam

Wbiuy AfjoH

15anbay MoayD - 109(0ud 4y - siuswisAoidwl} anusAy 21e61Sapn 1096107

[oUdIN 89213 -~ %03y - 108lold dy - Siusweaoidiu] snueny jeBisepm LO96L0Z 0202Z/0L1L

f 2



SCOPE OF SERVICES

Scope of Services
Professional Services Agreement
Westgate Avenue from Wabasso Drive to Congress Avenue
Palm Beach County Project No. 2019601
Palm Beach County

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.00 PROJECT OBJECTIVE AND DESCRIPTION
2.00 PROJECT DESIGN LIMITS
3.00 QUALIFICATIONS DURING TERM OF SERVICES
4.00 BASIC SERVICES - SCOPE AND RESPONSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS
4.01 Project Schedule
4.02  Preliminary Design
4.03 Plans and Design Submittals
4.04 Utility Coordination
4.05 Drainage
4.06  Coordination of Design within Project Limits
4.07 Construction Cost Estimates
4.08 Design Survey
4.09  Signing and Pavement Marking
4.10 Landscape Architecture
4.11  Lighting Design
4.12 Signalization Design
4.13 Post Design
5.00  PLANS PREPARATION, ENDORSEMENT AND OQWNERSHIP
6.00 COST PROPOSAL
7.00 SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE COUNTY
8.00 PLAN SUBMITTALS

Attachment- 1 Combined Staff Hours and Fee
Attachment- 2 Design Survey- Services by Sub-Consultant Brown & Phillips
Attachment- 3 Signing & Pavement Marking - Services by Sub-Consultant Constructive
Engineering Inc.
Attachment- 4 Landscape Architecture - Services by Sub-Consultant Insite Studio
Attachment- 5 Lighting Design — Services by Sub-Consultant Smith Engineering Consultants, Inc.
Attachment- 6 Signalization Design — Services by Sub-Consuitant Smith Engineering Consultants, Inc.
Attachment- 7 Post Design

Weslgate Ave from Wabasso Dr to Congress Ave June 18, 2020
American Consulting Engineers of Florida, LLC PBC Project No. 2019501

Gy



SCOPE OF SERVICES

Scope of Services
Professional Services Agreement
Westgate Avenue from Wabasso Drive to Congress Avenue
Palm Beach County Project No. 2019601
Palm Beach County

. PROJECT OBJECTIVE AND DESCRIPTION

1.00

2.00

1.01 Services required of the CONSULTANT involve furnishing, providing, and
performing engineering analysis, design and preliminary plan preparation. Planned
improvements to the corridor will include the following:

1.01.1 Reducing the existing five (5) lane urban roadway section to three (3)
lanes from Wabasso Dr to Congress Ave. Drop right turn lane at
Wabasso Dr and Congress Ave. Keep existing left turn lanes and two-
way turn lane in the median.

1.02 This Project shall be designed by the CONSULTANT upon receipt of a written
Notice to Proceed (NTP) with services to be provided as more particularly
described herein.

PROJECT DESIGN LIMITS

3.00

CONSULTANT shall provide professional consulting services to the COUNTY,
consisting of design, permits and construction plans for approximately 0.87 Miles of
Westgate Avenue from Wabasso Drive to Congress Avenue hereinafter known as the
"PROJECT".

QUALIFICATIONS DURING TERM OF SERVICES

4.00

The CONSULTANT shall provide all engineering services for the Project, in accord with
and of a quality, meeting the minimum design standards established by Palm Beach
County.

BASIC SERVICES - SCOPE AND RESPONSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS

The CONSULTANT will provide the following customary basic services for the
PROJECT;

4.01 Project Schedule:

The CONSULTANT shall prepare and maintain a bar chart schedule (Microsoft
Project), for the Project design services to meet the FDOT production date of
October 4 2021. In preparing the bar chart schedule, the scheduling of all
design activities shall be the responsibility of the CONSULTANT. Preliminary
schedule shall be submitted with anticipated Notice to Proceed (NTP) for board
approval. The schedule shall be updated and submitted to the COUNTY within
ten (10} working days of receiving NTP for review.

4.02 Preliminary Design:

This phase will include acquisition of all research information necessary to complete the
preliminary design of the facilities. This research will include obtaining all the necessary
field survey data, utility information and environmental information. This phase will
include analysis of the roadway typical section, roadway geometry, conceptual

Westgate Ave from Wabasso Dr to Congress Ave June 18, 2020
American Consulting Engineers of Florida, LLC PBC Project No. 2019601

v~



SCOPE OF SERVICES

stormwater management system design, drainage area maps, coordination with all
permitting agencies, and utilities.

Preliminary design shall include the design and construction requirements for roadway
improvements and other incidental design items within the PROJECT limits. The above
designs and plans shall be prepared in accordance with current standards adopted by
the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials, the Florida
Department of Transportation, the Palm Beach County Engineering Department, as
listed hereinafter or as will be made known to the CONSULTANT during performance
of all services for the Project.

DESIGN ANALYSIS- the CONSULTANT will provide the following services and perform
the following tasks:

4.02.01 Typical Sections- Consultant will prepare two three (3) lane typical
sections (Wabasso Dr. to Suwanee Dr.) and one four (4) lane section (Suwanee
Dr. to Congress Ave) for the project.

4.02.02 Pavement Design - Provided by PBC.

4.02.03 Horizontal/Vertical Master Design Files - Consultant will design a three
(3) lane section that stays within the existing road right of way.

4.02.04 Cross Section Design - Consultant will prepare preliminary design cross
sections at 100 ft intervals.

4.02.05 Summary of Quantities - Consultant will prepare preliminary and final
quantities for one (1) alignment.

4.02.06 Summary of Pay Items - Included in construction plans.
4.02.07 Technical / Special Provisions — As needed.
4.,02.08 Field Reviews — Multiple field reviews are proposed (see staff hours).
4.02.09 Technical Progress Meetings — As needed or quarterly.
4.03 Plans and Design Submittals:
4.03.1 Review Plans:

All plans submitted to the COUNTY for the purpose of review will be
11" x 17" in size with screened raster image background. During the
design stage the CONSULTANT shall submit the following:

(a) A minimum of two (2) sets of progress plans for review by the
COUNTY at phase submittals.

(b) A PDF file containing the plans along with all the CADD files will
be submitted with each submittal.

4.03.2 Design Computation Documents:

All of the following record documents shall be submitted to the
COUNTY by CONSULTANT, or Sub-Consultant as applicable, at the
time of final acceptance or otherwise as noted elsewhere in this scope
of services document, neatly bound in an 8 12" x 11" format and PDF
or as to the satisfaction of the COUNTY. All review comments made

Westgate Ave from Wabasso Dr to Congress Ave June 18, 2020
American Consulting Engineers of Florida, LLC PBC Project No. 2019801

AL



SCORE OF SERVICES

on design documents or reports submitted as listed below shall be
responded to and incorporated into the documents as applicable and
such documents or reports shall be resubmitted to COUNTY at the
following design interval submittal date as requested. All plans,
specifications, and/or reports prepared or obtained under this
Agreement shall be considered works made for hire and shall become
the property of the COUNTY and shall be made available, upon
request, to the COUNTY at any time. Submittals of design
computations shall include, but not necessarily be limited to the
following:

{a) Two (2) copies of Technical Memorandum that should list all
design criteria that CONSULTANT will be utilizing during plans
development of the Project two weeks after NTP date. Design
criteria will be based on all applicable criteria from the FDOT
Greenbook and Palm Beach County Thoroughfare Design
Standards.

(b) Two (2) copies, signed and sealed, of survey field notes.

(c) Two (2) copies of design computations that shall include, but not
necessarily be limited to, horizontal and vertical alignment
design.

(d) Project correspondence required to document design decisions
reached during development of the plans at each design review
interval as applicable.

(e) CONSULTANT shall follow FDOT LAP requirements.

4.04 Utility Coordination:

4.04.1 The COUNTY shall send each identified utility one (1) copy of
proposed improvements to identify their existing facilities. The
CONSULTANT will coordinate all Project designs with those utility
owners that may have a direct or indirect interest in this Project.
Coordination efforts by the CONSULTANT shall consist of attending
meetings, exchange/submission of proposed construction plans to
respective utility, design coordination to effectuate cost-effective
Project improvements resulting from resolution of conflicts with
existing and planned utility facilities. No proposed UWtility Design is
included with Project.

405 Drainage:

The project drainage improvements consist of utilizing as much of the existing
drainage system as possible adding and/or adjusting inlets before discharging
water to existing system. The specific locations for adding new inlets, and the
number of inlets to be added, will be determined during the design process. The
project drainage improvements shall be designed and constructed within the
existing roadway right-of-way, COUNTY easements or COUNTY-owned
property.

4.05.1 Proposed roadway drainage system shall be within the Project limits.
Overland runoff from upland properties shall be considered in the final
roadway drainage design.

4.05,2 The CONSULTANT is required to determine drainage areas contributory
to the Project.

Westgate Ave from Wabasso Dr to Congress Ave June 18, 2020
American Consulting Engineers of Florida, LLC ;[ r] PBC Project No. 2019601



4.06

4.07

4.08

4.09

4.10

4.11

412

4.13

SCOPE OF SERVICES

4.05.3 The CONSULTANT shall coordinate permitting requirements during
preliminary roadway design tasks with SFWMD. The CONSULTANT
shall hold coordination meetings with the COUNTY and SFWMD for this
task. A maximum of three (3) agency meetings are included in this task.
Any meetings between CONSULTANT and permitting agencies shall
include COUNTY staff.

Coordination of Design within Project Limits:

4.06.1 Design services specified herein shall include reconstruction of curb and
guiter, sidewalks and driveways and transitions to match existing
sidewalk, curb, pavement and driveways as required. Engineer will utilize
as much of the existing roadway as possible.

4.06.2 Coordination of designs with adjacent land developers and/or contractors
that may be performing work or improvements within or adjacent to the
project limits will be the CONSULTANT's responsibility.

4.06.3 To the extent necessary for CONSULTANT'S performance of services
and upon request from CONSULTANT, the COUNTY will provide all
available record data, information, plans, right-of-way permits, etc.
relating to adjacent land developments (existing and proposed).

4.06.4 CONSULTANT to coordinate with Westgate CRA regarding the typical
section, on-street parking locations, landscaping and lighting.

Construction Cost Estimates:

CONSULTANT will prepare and submit a construction cost estimate with the
following phase submittals: Initial Engineering Plans; Constructability Plans;
Biddability Plans & Production Submittal.

Design Survey- Services for this Project are being performed by Sub-Consultant
Brown & Phillips. See Attachment 2.

Signing/Pavement Marking- Services for this Project are being performed by
Sub-Consultant Constructive Engineering Inc. See Attachment 3.

Landscape Architecture- Services for this Project are being performed by Sub-
Consultant Insite Studio. See Attachment 4.

Lighting Design- Services for this project are being performed by Sub-Consultant
Smith Engineering Consultants, Inc. See Attachment 5.

Signal Design- Services for this project are being performed by Sub-Consultant
Smith Engineering Consultants, Inc. See Attachment 6.

Post Design- Services to be provided by the design team. See Attachment 7.

5.00 PLANS PREPARATION, ENDORSEMENT AND OWNERSHIP

5.01

American Consulting Engineers of Florida, LLC

All sheets of the constructuion drawings shall have a title block across the entire
bottom or side of the sheet. The standard Project title block and standard sheets
shall be furnished by the COUNTY.

PBC Project No. 2019601

Woestgate Ave from Wabasso Dr to Congress Ave 4 5 June 18, 2020



5.02

5.03

SCOPE OF SERVICES

CONSULTANT shall conform to the COUNTY'S CADD standards as outlined in
the COUNTY’S Thoroughfare Design Procedures including line weight, line type
and adherence to level names. Microstation files are available upon request.

All final plans, documents, reports, studies and other data prepared by the
CONSULTANT and/or its subconsultants will bear the signature and seal of the
CONSULTANT's record engineer or the applicable design engineer who shall be
duly registered in the appropriate professional category.

6.00 COST PROPOSAL:

6.01

The CONSULTANT's cost proposal herein does not include costs for permit
application fees to respective environmental or COUNTY agencies. The cost for
permitting, if paid by CONSULTANT, shall be reimbursable by the COUNTY in
full upon submittal of fees justification. See Attachment 1.

7.00 SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE COUNTY:

The following tasks, activities and or items will be provided by the COUNTY

7.01
7.02
7.03
7.04

Copies of proposed development plans adjacent to the project limits.
Provide raster images for the design and permitting,
Upcoming utility permits to be incorporated in the plans.

CADD seed files.

8.00 PLAN SUBMITTALS:

The following represents anticipated submittals to COUNTY and FDOT for this project:
Initial Engineering Plans, PDF and CADD files;

Constructability Plans, PDF and CADD files;

Biddability Plans PDF and CADD files;

Production Submittal, PDF and CADD files;

The items listed above are not all-inclusive service responsibilities, but rather are primary
categories. See preceding pages for all contract services by consultant.

Westgate Ave from Wabasso Dr to Congress Ave June 18, 2020
American Consulting Engineers of Florida, LLC 4% @ PBC Project No. 2019601



SCOPE OF SERVICES
Attachment- 1

Combined Staff Hours and Fee

Westgate Ave from Wabasso Dr to Congress Ave June 18, 2020
American Consulting Engineers of Florida, LLC D PBC Project No. 2019601
o



Wd ZE¢ 020Z/BLIS | jo g efieg auwig - By 83
¥SK' LY 81800 99 pAUqU0D elebises,
LOGPEOFSS -33d4 O3LVIWILST TVIOL ONVHD 1
00'608°L5 “ Bupeauibug WS -uBisag 1804
TL 1OV ES m DipN1S Shisul -ubsag 1503
0Z°0HF ¥S U] “BuaauBLg SANSNASUCT) -UBISoC 160
BL'CIGEYS j uesiaury -ubrEaq 1504
0000055 (suondEnsaq [#5o1 g SeqoianGs) UG § UMGIE SenAres [Euardo
_ sanlalag [euendg)
0E'955TGPS -334 GILVYALLSE TvLoLEns
oot P-wNw U] "SIUEHNSUOY Dukssul JUEBYNSUOZONG
LEZREVES 0lpnig ajsuy
00'9ZE'6LS TUEINSU0SGNG
GRETLGES DU Sd|[[Ug § umDJg] CIUE|[NSU0SGRS
SLIYIFIEES _ *sasuaddxg agesanquiey
005988 | _spusad aWMdS ‘S3SNIIXT
00'0$ %000 [Rauon 1563 lendeD semiaed) Wood
18951 'ved %L NIDHYIN DNILYH3Z0
[ %631 [ -avaty3no
GZERLOLLS :51502 03 Lv13 AMYTVS
SZ'EEL'OLLS  =X%3uD
12298 SZT'ERL'0LLS 0008 00'os 00'0% 0008 co'cs 000 ELSL0°S% 00588 vLS 0028928 P5'95F' FIS ENGER QUS0E'EES 1S03 HES [BpoL
84T 0 [} [ 0 [} [i] 291 £ttt 91 6¥Z ays SBL 184°) SINOH pejs jejol
157198 118'58 a6 ) ] 0 0 [} [} al &l ot vl 62 ¥l 96 128 (dweD spuuad | Iiauz g
197195 LIE's% a5 ] ¢} 1] 0 0 [+ ol [:18 i]3 143 6Z 143 96 sean "2
G195 a5'vs o8 0 [+ 0 i 1] o 2] al 8 i e Zl 08 sueld aBeineiq ‘09
£6'19% [ By A% zz 0 ] 0 0 0 [ 0z Toy oz oE 19 554 20z sishjeuy sbeuelq “eg
G198 £18'SES 085 0 0 0 0 1] o 85 aLl 85 1% il 8 085 suej Aempeoy g
62195 0p6'LES vL9 0 o 0 0 0 [ 19 x4 19 26 ¥el £6 ¥19 sishjeuy Aempeay 4
£7'08% 88128 Gt 0 [+] 0 L) 1] 4] 0 0 Q [H S b4 68 syse | uowwey salorg pue 218039 1aloid ')
ysel RIAl2Y Ry [ [ 0008 0005 0008 00°0$ GEOES [iTE3 00'9rs 90°88$ £eles 00°6:8 ___.._..m_.__.._hmz
42d 9=y hm sog hm Tl uapesy |1 ucljeai} 0} uopea)y 6 uoneay g uojjeay 2 ucljeay aqvd LuEm—mun_ - 1Ru3 .u I3 B W HS. s uopeayssela el
abesany Mg HS “ISSEID HEIS | -ISSEID Yms ( -issepppeis | issepyeis | cisseiopes | -isseip geis | pouBisag Jojuag e wafoly  |oafoudiowag|  y08(ead | woay sinon
OND  -ojewns3 WiN CON v
0Z0Z/2L/9 =eq L096L0T “Ndd
Jaquiny ‘foud SjUBNSUOS JAUa  ToN JUEYNSUDD yaeeg wied HAunoD
271 “s1euoissaoid Bunnsuon uBauaWy  AWep WEnsuoy anuaay ssaibuo) o) aauQg OSSEOEAA WK anuany leBisam “pofald jo awey

LNVLINSNOD IWRIL - LSOD ANV LHOd43 MHOM 40 J1VNILST




0Z0T/BLA gJo g abieg SISEL [BleUsD 108l0id ¢
XS/X' LY 949002 884 peugwoD ebisapm

-Anawweibojoyd Joj ydeaxe ‘g uwinjog oy plemiod ubnoiy pue yesys aujjdiasip yoea uy pajenaies ase shupeaw Jafeuew yosfoig ¢
‘sajauabe Bupyjuued usamyan sBupaaw Aouabe Junoo ajgnop Jou og “Z
“uwnjes Juninoy ayy uj aSeisae ayj 1oyus {smoy) L3bua| v Lea Bupesw Jad sinoy ayl | *L

TSI0N
aA0(e 9'C YSEL 0) SAUJED SINoH Bunsap Wd 210l 68 K] sBunesyy 1ebeuepy yoafoid [e3o)
a{npayas yiualk g1 Buunp sysia g Zl ¥ € w3 SMBJASY P18l
(Aungeppiq 1sod pue Ayqezenusucs 1sod ‘lequlysad) epuugns yoes je Bugeatu 1 z £ va smalray aseyd
(sanuiw pue aw Buasw sepnpul v sieBisap *0gad yps sbunaspy g £ 4 v amjsa)iyny adesspue]
(sanujw pue awy Bunesw sepnioul) D eBisam “1dd yim sBunaapy 9 € z v Bunyi
/N 4] 0 I v3a uayezieubig,
. sonUIW pue 3wy Guileaw sapnput Fd Z 3 3 Buppe justaaed g Bulubig
sajnury pue swy unaew sopnfow £ £ L w3 [ElUBIWIUONALT
{seyup pue sy Bugeaw sapnpuy Busap uoneupoeD Allan IBul4 pUE [2giuj I £ ] va selmn
sajnu pue swy Butesw sepnipul 6 € € v3 aBeuieag
{sanuw pue aw Gunasw sapnpu) vy o aebisaa pue oS 08d 'wes) ubisaq yim Bugeay yosory 1osloidg a1 £ g v s|sf|Buy Aempeoy
SjusWWoY SINOH [E30L | NUN {SINOY | SIIUR) jO ON sHUn sGupaayy Jabeuey 1afoid Jo s - 9'¢
] |ejol SySe [elauas) 193faid pue uowwo?) 193fold 't
molaq buns) eag 68 13 L 23] sBugeay sabeuepy 1aalord Jueynsuog awid| o
sjusuIwIon SO hun jsanon|syun so on|  suun xse) N
lejoL ySe]l
soualagord JoLysiq 4ad ‘feucyydo S| joolg a4n)eubls 310N
A11ey,0 spyo dOv
1Zzy unoJep 08d
ajeq J auneuBig eueN jutid . Bupuasaudey
1096102
enuaay ssaIBUO 0] BAL(] OSSEUEAA LI0Y BnUBAY aleBiseps OND JojBwis3

SYNSEL (21930 .f ANANOY j08l01d



0zZozZ/mBLS gJo g abeyg sIsA[eLy Aempeoy
XS4 LH BLA00Z 894 paulquos HEb)jsam

TRL 0} sae)y L1y msale)
9 {¢ ge] o) sawued) sBuitaal Jabeuey 1a0lold [ejoL :1% sBupealy jejol
-- € }SE] |EJOUAD Uc paisjua Ajjenuew s sbunaay malAsy asel]d Je F3DUBPUaINE Wd g Z 2 v3 sBunaspy mejaey eseld
9 sBuijaspy 1abeuey 1oejord |ejoiqng 8 shugaapy |esfUyday |ejoqns|
¥ SaA ¥ Z 4 \E| sbunaapy Jauylo
z sak YO pue J8d v T [3 v3 uwoag (eadk L
lagluny M”“._"_.ﬂwﬂv___uhﬁ H..“‘ Sjusunualn w_..u”_“.__“_ un jsInoH|s)un o oN suun sbunaay leauyso],

¥i9 |ejol sjshjeuy ABMpeoY ‘¢
or |ej01qNE [EAIULYIBJUON SISAjeUy Aemproy

#o|aq paisy aie sBugaap 91 9 1 s sbuse [eouysal | 2y
{me1ae) tod s1y ¢) odoad omy, - SMBIASY © |4 e 1 g1 smawmay pRId| 027
¥iS Iejojqng |eatuyoa ) siskjeiuy Aempeoy
e 0 g e o o et oo ey mo ey sty | | o | v | s sotens fowpeon o] o
[EUCHIPpE LTS S O] USU) BTGNS 511 J0) w_;m__ﬂm__”““_._wﬁ %001 '%96 %S9 ‘%0E 1€ [efu]) seleuwgss 1s0g =8 58 - 51 SIBWRSI 0D LY
0L ot L 81 SaMEND] OLb
sa|ru 680 104 {,001) olru sad s1y G| 86 5216 L a1 sajl4 ublsaq volas sSAID| 60
(onue sad s1y 1.2) (ineke| pue ubisap [eoaA pue |elUOZUOY) S| 580 8l1 SgLL 1 §1 591 ubisag Ja)sepy [eouan/ |ejuozioH | &t
(1evoippe yaes Jo} s1Y § pue [eoKdA) IS 10§ S1Y 91} suoRIsS (eaidA ¢ ¥E ve L s1 abieyoed uonoeg [eodiL| 1y
LSRR m_HM.".._ Run /sIoH |sRUn o ON|  SHUn Asel x.ww_ N
aauvasayaad jornsyg 1od feuondo sp yooyg aunpeubis (3 LON
Aon,0 suyo dov
127y unolejy ogd
ajeq f sumeuB)g SWEN JU|id Bupueseidey

1096102
anuany ssaIBUDD 0) AU OSSEARAN WOL aNuaAY Jleiisap OND -lojewns3

5



020z/8L9

g jo yebeg

sue|d Aempeoy §
Xs[X' | 19002 984 pauiquuioy ajebisap

085 lejo) sue|d Aempeoy ‘g
085 [210JqnS [eSfUYIe ), Sueld Aempeoy
8 2 ! 1@8Yg (elea ang) (shesys uoneayen Aunn| 12°s
sjeatejul Joo1 @ senw 5g°0 £T g0 S va SUoljoeg ss0I]| 8L°S
oje ‘Bunjred jasns uo ‘sAemanlig ov 0z z w3 sjejaq (ersdg| §L°G
~anuany ssasbuag) je neajelg j74 v ! jPaLg s|ieja(g Jnoke uanoasm|| LG
ss|yoid Aemarng gol z ¥e 193ys siljoid lepadg| glL°g
ajyoad ylemapls Jo yoeq Bupnjoul (sjEds gr) sj8eys 6 52T oz 6 REEI ot BAUS ooIdiueId| 1S
0z 0z l 1Bayg Inode peford| g'g
~ole pue Buippos “yomyped jo Alewiwng b F2A Z 19843 s)@ayg senuenn jo Aelng| §°G
Z zZ L R $010N wa) Aeg/sloN jeisuen| '
aAall] 9|ounLas 10} 1ejaq g 8 1 va siejaq uanoog exdhL | 2'e'g
ssaiBupy Je |eoidA} aue| ¢ - | (Inoylim auo %:Mmmu_v__u‘_wmn 1eBJ)s-u0 Suipnjou) suo) sjeoidk) sue| g - 2 ot ot € V3 suopoag [eaidhy | 1g’S
slaayg uoyoag [edAL| €5
0z 0e L JEENT induj &nuent Buipniug sway Aed jo Aewwng| zg
B g 1 1884s lesus Ay g
89
suewwon snoh | WeuSi0 | ocun | awn | emos oL N
40 "ON
esualejeid 3a1nsiq 4ad ‘feucndo st yaoyg aumeubs (SION
Aey,0 sty d0v
1ZZy unciey 29d
ayeq j ednjeubis alrey Juug Bunguasaiday

L0B6L0E
enuany ssaibuoy 0} A OSSEURAN W) anusay ajebisep

SUE|d AEMPECY G ANANDY 100[0id

OND :1orewns3

&



sisfleuy sbeulelq ‘eg

0zZozieLie gieg
XSjx Ly 8L900Z 8. pauigrun) ejefiisam
£ GEL 01 s3Iy 6179 1 saure)
0 (e qey, 0} sajued) sbupesyy 1abeuey joafoag (ejo] 9 sBupeay |eio ._._
0 ] sBupaay jeojuyoa) _Eo_azm_
saInUL pue awg Gunssw sepnjosul ] £ Zz v3a {sanuno3 'sania) SJUSWILBADS) |23
Jpainbay Bujjasiy SIoKH
Jaquun| SBILUO:; un jsino un jo o s,
GUINN | e aouepusny Wd ¥ D oy [MUn/sinoH|siunjo oN N sbupeayy |esjuyas)
z0Z jeja) sisAjeuy abeute:q ey
8} [2101GNg {E3lUYSAUON SisAleUy aBEURIG
mojag pajsy| ase sbuee 9 9 . 3 1 sbunaay yeauysal | 2z2'eg
[44 F43 3 381 SMIlASYH PRI | 1Z2BS
¥al le10iqng [eojuyoa ), sshjewy abeujesq
ot 13 L 51 uoday uojejuswnaog ubiseq obeuelg| gl'es
1143 I 9 v sulerg uuojg jo ubisaq| 6eg
00Str at 4 z depy 1ag AGoloipAH deyy abeureag| |'eg
SUBLIUO:; sinoy N jSINOH |SIvn Jo ON suun se N
) 0 poy " ! nseL yse),
asuaJayaud 1a1siq Jad jeuonydo sp yaojg aameubis :31ON
swepy [ig d2v
1Z2¢ unciey O8d
ojeq J dunjeubis AweN juud Bupueseadey
1086102

anuany ssa1bLog 0) AU OSSEGEAA WOl anuany sjebisa

SWEPY 19 Jojeunsa

O



0Z0Z/BH9

gJo gabey sueld abeurig ag
xS’ LY §LO00Z 884 PauUIAWIOT DIBBISOM
08 lejo sue|d efeuje.q 9
08 lejolgng [eajuyas) sueld efeurelq
papastt aq || S|elep [e1oads awos oy 0z Z T s)98yg |Iejeq ebeueq snosueyeosiiy| 9°q9
or 4 4 198ys {sabueyaseu| Bupnjou|) dep ebeuelq| 1°q
jeayg .
SANOH jaays 1o ON
alea se
SjuamwIe] oL |wun reinen 10 m.u_c_._ sjun |eas yse), wsel
40 'ON
eouasagaid 1o1sia sod ‘feuondo si yaojg asmeubls 310N
swepyf fig dov
1ZZy UNCIEW 08d
ajeq f aumeub)s QuieN Julld Bupuasoaday

1096L0C

amtoay $5a16UOS 0) DAL OSSEQEAA WOY nuany aleBisap

sue|q obeureid "qa

swepy [I1g SojewpsT

4



0202/8119 g)o £ ebeg Saman "L
XX’ LY 81.900Z 994 pauiquo) ajebisam
£ qEL 0} S
6 (¢ qe] o3 salues) sbupaay Jabeuepy Joafoid |eloL 14 sBunasy 1oL
1 s9A| (ssnuiw pue swy Bugaaw sapnjow) Bugasw | ‘sidoad g g ¥ Z v3 (5°2 @as) Bupsspyy ubiseg
¥ saf g 4 ¥ v3 (9'2 99s) sBuyoaly plad
¥ saA 8 z 14 v3 (92 @os) sBulealy OVN [2APINPU|
Jaquun Fﬂmh_—_—uﬂm m_.__uww—ﬁ Uaiulo: SInoH 1] SINOH | SHL; 0 0 ({1} sBunsa [E3ILIYDa
quinN 1€ ssuepuUaRY Wd sy 2 01 uun / H|sNun jo oN sjHun Nasp [ealuysal
96 {ejo saniin "L
{(s.0vn 01) A Jed sy Z 0z 474 L g1 dnmojiedfuoneulpood Ammn | |4
suawaaiby 9 sanpaysg Jo Sulssanolg i

(s.ovn 01) Annn Jed siy g 0z 0z L 51 pUE 'SoNpPaUYas IO ' sdnsep Aunn memey | OF 4

mojeq paisi) st Bunaapy 8 g L 23 Bunaaly ubissq Ampn| &2

{sappn Bugsxg oL} A sod s1y ¢ 114 or 1 g1 {s)OwN Woly BleQ pue sueld mamay pue ja9iod| £

(yoes siy g uosiad 1) sBupjesw y awnssy 8 8 b §1 sBunesiy peldENPINPU]| 972

SIUIUIO SINoH Jun /SINoH | SHUn JO ON s ysel “ON
3 9 ewop  [|* b : dseL
dauassyord JoLnsiq Jad feuondo s; yoorg asmeubis (JI0N

Al19y,0 suyo dov
1Zzy unoley 2dd
aeq / aumeubis ELN I VR UTTE| Bunuasaaday
L0961.02

snuaAy ssJBUOD 0) BAL OSSBYRAK LUOI) snuaAy ajebisap

sagiiin =L

umyey uebep 1ojewnsy

7



0Z0TBLo

£ geL o} sawes

§ Jo g abeg

81'g M saw=g

sjiliad [BlUsluonAUg "9
Xs[¥" 1Y B1900Z 994 poujquog sjebisapy

0 (¢ qel o} sallea} sbunaay Jabeuspy 109l0ld ejol ¥ sbBunsay fejol
0 sBuneap Jebeuely yoefold [Bloiqng ¥ sBuneapy [eduyoa} [BINIGNS
0 sajnuiw pue swj Bugaaw sapnjaul ¥ 14 1 v3a AWM
Lbsiinbay Bunesy sinoH
JagquinN 18 BOUBPUONY id sjusluwo) — UM /SINOH [syun jo oN sNun sBujjes|y jesiuysa]
96 |ejol ssouelea|n pue asueljdiuoy ‘splLiad [ByuaLIUOHAUT '8
b4 je101gNg |E2UYIJUCN SAdUeIE3]n pue saueljdwon ‘s)ULIS |BJUBLULGIIAUT
Mo[3q pays)| aue sbugeapy ¥ ¥ L g1 sBunsaly |lealuyosi] Z1'g
z6 [e3o3qng [eajuysa) SUCHEN|EAIIY/SIDUELIEI}) pue ‘asue]jduon .mu_._Ewn_ [ UEITU AT
SUOIIEN|EAIIY/SIZULIEA[D) [EJUANLUOIAUT
suoneanddy| .
(nam) Bupeemaq pue dy3 ANMIS 08 08 L 81 HLLIS pUEReA peanbey (I Twang pue syaiduon | F V8
suoyes)ddy jjuiad pasnbay ||y yugng puy adwo)| g
sHuLRd
Zt F1) I 81 youeasay josloid Meulwaid| 1'g
saouelea[d pue sasueljdwoy) ‘SPULId [EUAIUOIAUY
SinoH sjun spun "ON
Sjustiiog [ejoL [sinoH Jo "ON suun Asel yse),
asuaseedd Jo1s1g 19d ‘tevondo st yoopg asmeulis :FJION
swepy [i'g doV
1ZZ¢ UnoJep 289d
aleq ; aimeubig SWEN Juld Bupuasaiday
1096102

snusay ssalbuog 0} sAl( CSSEQRAA WO BnuaAY JleBisop

SJIWIa] [CJUBIUCIIAT :g MIARDY J2al04d

swepy (ig :ojewssy

5



SCOPE QF SERVICES

Attachment- 2
Design Survey- Services by Sub-Consultant Brown &
Phillips.
Westgate Ave from Wabasso Dr to Congress Ave June 18, 2020
American Consulting Engineers of Florida, LLC PBC Project No. 2019601

£4



February 3, 2020

Mr. Chris O’Reilly

American Consulting Engineers of Florida, LLC
2041 Vista Parkway, Suite 101

West Palm Beach, FL 33411

Re: Westgate Avenue from Wabasso Drive to Congress Avenue - Roadway Design Survey
Palm Beach County Project No. 2019601

Dear Chris:

Thank you for the opportunity to provide you with the following services for the subject site. This proposal
is based on documentation and information provided by your office. The scope of services is as follows:

SCOPE OF SERVICES

We will perform a specific purpose/topographic survey under this project and the survey work will be
performed in accordance with the current Standards of Practice and Palm Beach County Roadway Design
Procedures dated January 2019, and all Palm Beach County requirements. All survey work done will result in a
signed and sealed survey drawing in accordance with all applicable requirements, codes, rules and Statutes
governing Surveying and Mapping.

L HORIZONTAL PROJECT NETWORK CONTROL

Using the information supplied by Palm Beach County, we will establish the Right-of-Way for Westgate
Avenue. A traverse will be run through the route and found monumentation will be tied in. The survey will be
oriented to Palm Beach County horizontal control (NAD 83/90 Adjustment). We will obtain the sectional and
geodetic control information from the Palm Beach County Survey Department.

The limits of the survey are from Wabasso Drive to Congress Avenue (see¢ included map).
IL RIGHT-OF-WAY

We will review and compile any title information furnished to us for the rights-of-way (R/W), abutting
properties, easements, and restrictions. No search of the Public Records will be performed by Brown & Phillips,
We will review the title package and plot all right-of-way documents and easements on the Survey and alert the
County of any missing R/W segments that make up the entire R/W corridor. All gaps or overlaps will be brought to
the County’s attention,

[II. VERTICAL PROJECT NETWORK CONTROL

A level run will be performed along the route using the existing Palm Beach County benchmarks (NAVD
1988). Benchmarks will be set along the route, not exceeding 600 feet apart. All benchmarks will be set outside of
the proposed limits of construction.

Iv. BASELINE LAYOUT

We will lay out the baseline at 100-foot intervals setting appropriate points at each station, The bascline
will be laid out within the limits of the £1 mile route. These baseline points will be used in the topographic and
cross section phase to locate features and facilitate checks.

1860 Old Okeechobee Road « Suite 509 « West Palm Beach, Florida 33409
(561) 615-3988 * Fax (561) 615-3991

MAPROPOSAI SIRY Fn\lP-\NV\:\mrrAf‘nm!\\\'Nm:m- Avenne Roadway Meafon Survev dne



O’Reilly
February 3, 2020
Page 2

V. HORIZONTAL CONTROL POINTS

The historic baseline of survey (if available) will be tied to a pair of PBCo. Horizontal Control Points at
each end of the baseline. Stations and offsets and State Plane Coordinates and monumentation will be labeled at
begin and end of historic baseline as well as PI's, PC’s, PT’s, PRC’s and PCC’s along the baseline not to exceed
1000 feet between control stations, All monumentation along the historic baseline will be referenced to the
intervisible random project control monumentation. We propose to set five (5) horizontal control points.

Vi SECTION TIES AND PROPERTY TIES

We will tie in section corners and property comers along the route to check the present alignment of
Westgate Avenue, We will try to locate as many corners as possible to positively establish the current rights of way.
We will tie in a minimum of two (2) Palm Beach County geodetic points to meet County requirements. Subdivision
corners, section corners and other existing control monumentation that will assist in the establishment of the R/W
will be located and shown on the Survey,

VIL SIDE STREET SURVEYS

A topographic survey will be done on all side streets to 100 feet from the right of way line of Westgate
Avenue, with centerline elevations to the drainage divide or 200°. This survey will show the edge of pavement and
all above ground features to 25 feet outside of the existing right of way.

VIII. TOPOGRAPHY

A topographic survey will be performed along the route. This survey will tie in all visible features such as,
but not limited to, signs, light poles, guardrails, utilities, walks, edge of pavement, curbing, drainage structures,
striping, etc. These locations will show all features within the corridor from right of way to right of way extending
to 25 feet outside the proposed right of way (if provided prior to start of the field work). In addition, we will obtain
the finish floor elevations for the buildings within the limits of the survey, and we will obtain extra shots along the
sidewalk to accommodate slope calculations for the design of ADA ramps.

IX. CROSS SECTIONS and TIN CREATION (DTM)

Cross sections will be done along the route at 100-foot intervals. These cross sections will cover the
roadway to the right of way lines and extend to 25 feet outside of the right of way (if provided prior to start of the
field work). In addition, we will prepare a TIN file and all the corresponding break lines for the design of the
roadway. Since a TIN is required this will entail additional shots to be taken on the cross sections to accurately
depict the existing conditions.

Along the route there is one major intersection at Congress Avenue. At this intersection, we will need to do
a plateau grid obtaining elevations at the intersecting lane lines.

X. AS-BUILTS

We will attempt to get as-built information on all the pipes leading out of any storm structures found. We
will show invert elevations, pipe sizes and materials for all pipes located including outfall pipes.

XL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

We will locate or set points for any necessary soil borings along the route. These points will be determined
by others and supplied to Brown & Phillips, Inc. Brown & Phillips, Inc will locate any underground utilities that are

marked in the field,

MLAPRADNS AT OV SOAID AR 3

Vranis Dasdias: Marinn @i daa




O’Reilly
February 3, 2020
Page 2

XIL TREE LOCATIONS

We will locate all the trees (47 and larger measured at breast height) and shrubs/hedges within the right of
way and extending to 25 feet outside the right of way on both the north and south sides of Westgate Avenue. These
will be shown on the CADD file with types and caliper sizes. Not a tree survey.

XIII. OPTIONAL SERVICES: LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS AND SKETCHES

We will prepare legal descriptions and sketches if needed for temporary construction easements (TCE).
These sketches will be based on record ownership data and record plats provided by Palm Beach County. All
sketches will be consistent with the requirements of Palm Beach County and Florida Standards of Practice. We have
estimated ten {10} parcels for this project at $500.00 each totaling $5,000.00.

XI¥. CLOSURE

A certified signed and sealed Topographic Survey (117 x 177 sheets on a 17 = 40’ scale) will be prepared and
delivered, to be included with the engineering plans (sheets SURX-SURXX) showing the existing right-of-way and
supporting record information in addition to all improvements as outlined. We propose to provide American
Consulting Engineers of Florida, LLC and Palm Beach County Survey Section with 1 set certified, signed & sealed,
of the Survey, 1 set in PDF digitally signed and CAD files in the version requested. Any additional work will be
done on an hourly basis as approved by you. We will perform the scope of services for a lump sum fee of
$40,723.88 ($35,723.88 for the survey and $5,000.00 for optional legal descriptions and sketches), see Table *A’ for
an hourly breakdown. Please do not hesitate to call me with any questions you might have regarding this proposal.
We look forward to working with you on this project.

Sincerely,
Brown & Phillips, Inc.

)5 -

n E. Phillips III, P.L.S.
cipal
JEP/mb

63

WABRARAC AT TRV CONID AN A marican Coaea Himat Wl artnala Arramaa D aadarar Narine Cormvanr Ana



BROWN & PHILLIPS, Inc.

PR OFESSI

O NAL

SURVEVYI

TABLE 'A’

N G

SERWVICES

Westgate Avenue from Wabasso Drive to Congress Avenue

Type of Survey: Roadway Design

Size: +1 mile

Date: February 3, 2020

TASK 3MAN | CADD | SURVEY| PLS COMMENTS

o . ‘ . CREW TECH TECH ' |
Meetings and Coordination 3
Herizontal Project Network 4 2 Establish control
Control R
Title Review 20 4 Review/compile furnished

. ' o right-of-way
Vertical Project Network 8 2 Set benchmarks along corridor
Control
Baseline Layout 5 1 Layout baseline at 100’ iintervals
Horizontal Control Points * 5 1 Set horizontal control points
. o and prepare PNC Sheet
Section Ties - 3 1 0.5 Tie in PBCo. Horizontal
. L - control
Subdivision & Property Ties - 12 5 2 Tie in adjoining property
‘ ‘ ‘ ' corners
Topography 44 11 1 Locate all above ground
3 features

Cross Sections’ 38 7 1 At 100" intervals to 25' outside R/W
_ . TIN file, intersection plateau, F.F.
As-builts - 8 1 As-bulilt storm structures
Underground Utilities . 2 0.5 Locate soil borings and
andfor soil borings marked utility
Tree Locations 8 2 Locate planted trees in R/W to

e . 25" outside R/W (4" or greater)
Specific Purpose Survey. 46 6 6 Prepare drawing of Specific
L - - Purpose Survey
Address Comments 3] 8 4
Total Hours: 137 52 67.5 21.5
Rate/Hour $162.37 $90.28 $90.28 $125.15
Subtotal: $22,244.69| $4,694.56 | $6,093.90 | $2,690.73
Total Labor Cost: $35,723.88
Other Direct Costs: quantity unit cost/unit total
Legal Description & Skefch 10  each $500.00 $5,000.00
Prints sheet $1.50 $0.00
Shipping cost x markup 1.20 $0.00
Total Other Direct Costs: $5,000.00
TOTAL PRICE $40,723.88

MWPROPOSALS\BY COMPANY\Ameri:

n Consulling'WVestgate Avenue Roadway Design Survey warksheet






& PHILLIPS, Inc.
PROFESSIONA SURVEYING SERVICES
Westgate Avenue from Wabasso Drive to Congress Avenue
Palm Beach County Project No. 2019601
Labor Rates by Personnel Ciassification
Subconsultant Name: Brown & Phillips, Inc.
Date: November 22, 2019
2019 Direct . 3019 Labot '
s Salary Cost (per{3,0 Multiplier| 2.~ """
Labor Classification ' hour} : _B'"'ng Rate ‘
Professional Land Surveyor $41.75 30|  $125.25
Survey Technician $30.12 3.0  $90.36
CAD Technician $30.12 3.0l $90.36
Survey Crew (3 person) $54.17 3ol $162.51
Survey Crew (2 person) $42.17 3.0 $126.51

Overhead & Profit Multiplier: 3.00

Preparation of Legal Descriptions & Sketches

Small All Terrain Vehicle Rental

Small Boat for soundings

$500.00 each

$100.00 per day

$50.00 perday

1860 Old Okeechobee Road - Suite 509 - West Palm Beach, Florida 33409

(561) 615-3988 - Fax (561) 615-3991

2

-




SCOPE OF SERVICES
Attachment- 3

Signing/Pavement Marking- Services by Sub-Consultant
Constructive Engineering Inc.

Waestgate Ave from Wabasso Dr to Congress Ave June 18, 2020
American Consulting Engineers of Florida, LLC PBC Project No. 2019601

AN



Scope of Consultant Services

WESTGATE AVENUE FROM WABASSO DRIVE TO CONGRESS AVENUE

Palm Beach County Project No. 2019601

Constructive Engineering, Inc. as a subconsultant to American Consulting Engineers of

Florida, LLC will provide the Palm Beach County with Signing and Pavement Markings

services for the Westgate Avenue from Wabasso Drive to Congress Avenue.

Following is the detailed list of services that will be provided for this project.

Signing and Pavement Markings Analysis and Design Services

1. Signing and pavement Analysis and Design utilizing the April 2018, Palm Beach

County Signing and Pavement Markings Standards

® ok W N

Quantities

Cost Estimates

Coordination with Prime Consultant and Palm Beach County Project Manager
Field Reviews.

Develop construction details which will include:

Key sheet

Tabulation of Quantities Sheet
General Notes Sheet

Plan Sheets

Guide Sign WorkSheets

An estimate of Work Effort including staff hours is being provided along with this scope.

67



WY £50L 050518

1 jo | abeg

TAONARSUCY-1BAYS Bad
XSICOZL LG-OARINNSUOY) BAY ajeBlsepm I8d

00'9Z¢'628 *334 QIAVALLSA IVLIOL ONYHD
[ SHAIAISG [EUORdD
00'92¢'62% 1334 031YWLLST T¥L1018NS
0003 Bupge] e pue pjaid [B3uLIniea]
oraze'eTs +334 G3LVHALLST TV1018NS;
00°9ZE°6ZS ‘334 GALVHILST TVL0LENS
000 Tepr| - s T skep (eUing Aq i - prd] Asaing|
maud uosiad-p
0098 %000 [ 83SN3dx3
0003 ‘(Aauoy 1200 [2)ide) sSpBeL) WOD
00708 NIDHWIA ONILLYHTL0
[ %6000 ] ovaHdang M3ID LOSIR - ¢
00°9ZE°625 ‘S1800 9F IV AHVTIVS weynsucagng Aq sAeq pjaly Asaing
D0'9ZE'6Z§ = X2UD
G60F1$ 00°97L'62% 0008 0008 0008 00'0% 00'0% 00'0% 0068 0oes 008 00'0% 00°'CLO'ES 00°'9LE'9Z% 150 Jeis [eloL
80z ] D .0 [ [} 0 4] ] 0 87 08} 80T SINOH yeig jejol
LTEELS 12E£'68 19 0 0 i [ [ 0 0 o [1] zL S5 19 sue|d Buppzeiy juawaned g Buubig 02
LIS 566'61$ (343 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 gl 521 ¥t s(af(euny Bupgen uewsned g Bubis ‘51,
ASEL Aoy Aoy 0005 0008 0008 000% 00'0% 0008 00°0% 0008 00°Cs o00s 05°4018 CLorLs St
dad ey Agson Ag L1 uspesy b 1§ 04 uopes) & uopes g uopjesy L uopedy g uopesy S uo{iesy ¥ uoqjesy € uonealy laaubug Jaawmbuz -EN__.ME:w s
sberony fres HS -ssepy g | ssepo pms | sseippes | asseiopms | asseio e | asseppms | dsseoues | isseiaueis | asseipums | ssepopeig | joafoid  |j0ef0nd 101 | yaug s | T i0 HES
BWEU Pasut JJojew|sg TON dYS
0Z02/51/9 =eq L09BL0Z ‘Ndd
soquinu foid sjuepnsuca BlUa  TON JUENSUCY) yoeaq wied Aunosy
fupsawbul aANINNSUOT  BWEN JUB)RSUCT) anuany ssai5uog) 0] 1] DSSRARAA W snuany ajeflsaps Joelolid Jo swe

INVLTINSNOQYNS © 1S0J ANV L0443 MH¥OM J0 3LVINLLSE




020Z/SLi9 | Jo | abeg sisAleuy Gunpep g Buubis st
XS[X'QTL LG-BAMISUCD oAy Blefisam Ddd
£ g8, ) 331 ZI'61 09 SaLLe]y
0 {¢ qel o) selueo) sBujjealy Jabeuepy joaloid [Rlo) 0 sBujjeap |BJOL
0 sBupealy meu:mi joaload [eloigqng 0 sBuijaay [esluyosa] |ejoignsg
Jagun ¢painbey ETTTY SinoH 1uf) /SInoH |syuun Jo o sjun sBunealy |ea1UYI>
quiny Bupyeay Je eSUEPLENY Wd ) b EjoL Hun 4 H|SHuUN Jo oN 1 Heal |ealuyaa),
L |ejo] sisAfeuy Gupjiey juswaased pue Sujubls gL
0z jejoigns [esiuysajuoy sisAjeuy Bupiiep juswaaed pue ujubis
0c 0z I i3] smelaey plEld|LE'6L
k4D f=10)qng [eoiuyas) sisA[euy Bunjiep jusweaaed pue Bujubig
9 9 L 81 Buppien jswaned pue Buubig Jauo (oL 6L
slemwqns aseyd § 2ol 474 0 3 1 BlRWis3 1500| 8'61
sanuety "
Sj98YSs 6 B0 og oz l 37 muenp| L6l
saliw g0 Yibuay oalod [ejoy 73 G2 L =3 a4 ubisoq Joisew pue asusie)ay| ©6l
8|y ufiisep sBupyew Juswaned pue Bujubls ay ysiqelss ¢) pannbal spoYs ||y
SiNoH spun syun ‘ON
sjustiniod [ejol jsinoy 10 ‘oN spun yseL yseJ
gaudsogord Jornsig 4ed jeuondo s yoorg esmeubis (310N
Bupnesuibug aagonisuog alueN JUBynsunD)
Alunod yseaq uey
ajeq ; aunjeubis SWeN jund Bupuesaidey

1096102

anusAy s52J6U02) 0} 1] OSSRQEAA WOY BNUSAY Sjebisapn

SISA[EUY BUDJIER] JUSWIBAE] PUE BUIIBIS 6] AQIANOY 303[0ig

JBLDINS] JLySe)] IojelST

/. G



DZ0ZIS L9 I Jo | ofieg sue|g Bupiey 3 Buubis 0z
’ XS{¥"OZ ) LG-BMIONNSUOD anY aleBisom DEd
9 Zl [e10] stueld Bupirel Justieaed pue Bulubig "oz
19 Zl [e1019nS Jesiuyoa) sue|d Bupey juswaned pue Buiubig
14 z z V3 (shaysyiom ufiis spino| g0z
14 6 s & l9aus 1a9yg ue|d| 9'0¢
9 3 9 L 19ayg SOJON W] Aed/s9joN [eseuan)| 0z
8 I 8 I 1aays safnuenp jo ucneinge; | €07
¥ I 4 I s 123yg Loyl L'0Z
sjaays "CN
sjusunuod SINOH [eyo] 00N HUn /SINOH | S}l 4O ON sHun 8jeds NseL wsel
aauaragesd Jornsiq 1ad ‘reuondo sy yoopg sunpeulis [JIGN
BuuaauiBug sagonijsued UIEN WEJNSU0D
Aunos yaeag wied
aeq / aameubis AEN JULd Bupuasaidey
L086L0T

arusny ssaibuar) o) 10 ossEqRA, WRY anuaay AeBIsaAN

Sle|g BUDJIEY JUAWIBAE PUE BUIDIS 02

JeUXII ysey Hojeus




SCOPE OF SERVICES
Attachment- 4

Landscape Architecture Services by Sub-Consultant
Insite Studio

Woesigate Ave from Wabasso Dr to Congress Ave June 18, 2020
American Consulting Engineers of Florida, LLC PBC Project No. 2019601

T/



BV insite studio

planning + landscape architecture

June 18, 2020

Jagan Katkuri

American Consulting Professionals, LLC
2041 Vista Parkway, Suite 101

West Palm Beach, FL 33411

JKatkuri@acp-fl.com

Re: Proposal for Landscape Architecture Services — Westgate Avenue from Wabasso Drive to Congress Avenue

Dear Jagan,

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal for professional services for the above referenced Project.
This Agreement is made as of June 18, 2020 between American Consulting Professionals, LLC. (Client) and Insite
Studio, Inc. {Consultant). The Scope of Services and associated fees are outlined below. Additionally, the
Standard Terms and Conditions associated with our services are attached hereto and are made part of this
Agreement,

Scope of Services

I. Schematic Design Phase $19,000.00
Insite Studio will prepare one schematic landscape design for the project. Below is an outline of the services
provided during this phase of the project:

e Inventory of existing site to understand condition of existing site, views and site context.

e Preparation of one conceptual design package including proposed landscape elements. The conceptual
design package will include one plan view rendering for the site, section/ elevation renderings, and
landscape image boards to convey the design intent.

e Two revision to schematic design package after receiving client feedback.

e Up to eight meetings with client, consultants, community, and stakeholders are included in this phase of
the project.

Il. Construction Document Phase $16,000.00

e Preparation of final landscape plan for permitting and construction. Final plan will include proposed
location of all plant material, plant list, planting details and detailed specifications. The landscape plan will
also include a disposition plan for existing trees as required.

e Preparation of final Irrigation plans. Plan will provide location for irrigation heads, lateral lines, main lines,
valve assemblies, etc. along with detalls and specifications.

¢ Up to five meetings with client, consultants, community, and stakeholders are included in this phase of the
project.

Prior to commencement of work, please return a signed copy of this Agreement to our office. Additionally, the
Client shall provide site surveys and CAD files {if available), for Consultants use in developing plans and completing
the defined scope of work.

8144 Qkeechobee Blvd. Suite A, West Palm Beach, FL 33411
www.insitestudio.com | 561.249.0940
1T A Page1of 6



B insite studio

planning + landscope architecture

2020 Rate Schedule
Professional Services

Staff Category Hourly Rate
Principal Landscape Architect $177.61

Project Landscape Architect $145.95
Designer $90.03
Administrative Staff $60
Reimbursable Expenses Rate

Black and White Copies (8.5 x 11) $0.30 per sheet
Color Copies (8.5 x 11) $1.00 per sheet
Black and White Copies (11 x 17) $0.60 per sheet
Color Copies (11 x 17) $2.00 per sheet
Black Line Prints {24 x 36} $2.00 per sheet
Color Prints (24 x 36} $50.00 per sheet
Foam Core Boards {24 x 36) $35.00 per board
Mileage/ Trave} 54,5 cents per mile

Charges for postage, out of pocket expenses, or other miscellaneous
project related expenses will be billed to the client with a 10% service
charge.

8144 Okeechobee Blvd. Suite A, West Palm Beach, FL 33411

www.insitestudio.com | 561.249.0940
'7 7 Page 6 of 6



Wd Zb'F 0Z0C/RHY

| Jo p sfied qng - jeays 94
Xsppeuspealds SINOH Yels "eay aieBlsop BL-00-020Z
LTTR6PES 3334 Q3LVALLS3 TYLOL ANV,
00°0$ [ S30IARS [euondQ)
12'286'7ES 334 GALVWLLSA TWL0LENS “a8) S} ABNOJEA O} ue)nsuGSONS Aq pasn aq o} jaays sy L
LTT86'PES -334 G31VWLLST TvLlo1ans SHION
64°20L'228 HS8L HAMHUTNW LIS0Ed ONY Qv3HE3IAG
St PIZ'ZLS _ (S1S00 Q3L 13 AUVIVE
BYRILTIS =P
16°9%% BPPIZTY [ 000$ 008 [T ®Fns 0003 0008 000s 000§ 0526828 OFBLE'ES 2471665 1509 geis B0
ZEE Q 0 0 0 0 [ ) 0 0 asc 99 ol ZEE sinoy JIBg (ReL
BE'OES 509'5§ E 0 ] 0 a 0 ] ) [ 0 SIL [ L T5) SUel] a0EospUET ‘g
£0°26% 699'9% 08 a 0 0 a 0 [} [+ 0 0 SEl 9 § 031 sisAeuy adeaspuet ‘5z
HseL Aoy Ragoy 0008 o0°0s o0os 000s [ 13 000§ ov0s 000s o005 657155 1Z15% ZETos g
Arewwng Hg,
18 ajey fg1s09 g €1 uopedip LE UOpEDE | O Uoped)y 6 uopedsy 8 L uaneay guopeIy § uoneay { uoneay 1ouBisa salo) 1 F“MMMWH* BIEMISSE -
afivsany fuges HS “1SSeID HEIS | "ESSRID WS | "ISSRID JRIS | "ISSRID JRIS | -ISSEID MBS | ISSEID HElS | ISSelS YR | -(SSe) eg | -SSel) gelg eav1 | V¥ d fedjausiy HOHCIUISSEID HRIS
anyeucq uelg 0jEW)S] YiN SN dvd
0ZOZ ‘gL dunr @yeq 1096102 Nd
BiLL ON JUEYNSUOT) AUnos) yIeag wied Aunany
DUl 'OIPMS BYSU| BB JUB)NSLOD)

anuaay ssaibuan o) AU 0sSEqEAL WOIY Anuany Sjebisan

AINVLINSNODENS - 1500 ANV 140443 MHOM 40 JLVKHILST

‘oefold Jo ewen

/7



0zoZ/eL9

I Jo t abeg

sisAleuy adeaspue] ‘g
XS[X790Uspealds SINOH HelS oAy ajebisem 81-90-0202

081 Iei0)gng sishjeuy edeaspuen]
14 14 3 w3 saeunsy 1500 1’52
Yyoea sinoy ¢ je mm_._._._me g sawnssy o1 z 8 ¥3 mm_.__umm—)_ lapjoyayers _.EF_:EEDU ...r_m_va epy'ce
08 or Z &1 suoisiaey ubiseg| iteggz
09 0% 1 7 ubjseq Bugue|q emdsouc)| egsg
9l 9l 3 51 sisfleuy pue Aiuaau| 5 7'5C
¥ ¥ ! g1 yaessay epoy juohadiod e1ea|  1'sg
SHun syun g
SJUSLINOY) SINOK [ejo) [snol 10 'ON ETIHN Y yse| ON Ysel
eouasejard Jorsic sod feuondo 51 ya01g sameubis (F1ON
anyeuog uelig Ul *olpnig SNsy)
ajeq ; 2injeubig aweN g Bunuassidey

*BAY S5aIBUDD 0] 9ALQ 0SSRARAA W0 BAY 2jEBISaM

SISA|euy adesspue] Gz

snyeuoq uefug :ojewysy

7 &



0Z0ZM9 } j0 | ebey sue)d adesspue ‘gz
XSPIBAYSPEAIGS SINCH YRS "8AY S1e5Isap 81-90-0202
Sk 22 SINOH [ediuy35] sueld edeospue
“Bunsew tad siney Z 1e sbuneew g ssunssy ol Bfu z g AEET sbupasy volleulpiood|oL sz
g z I 4 BaYg . SBJON pue s|iBa(] uoneblu]|§'9g
oF g g [ jaoyg 193l014 Aempeoy Jeaur Joj sueld uopebi]| gz
v b ¥ I [y sajoN pue sieleq Bunueld| 29z
09 [ ZL [} BEEIV siasfosd Aempecy Jesur tog sueld Bunueld| oz
suB|d Ucnisodsyg eal] pue|
ot § 4 S ways SUB[d LOQEIOOY pue uoiasiold uonelabop pue aai] ¥z
8 < 4 4 @3ug SaloN [248udgy| £'9z
8 b 8 I B8 8|NpaySs JuBld PUB safjueny) jo usheingeL | zgg
4 ! ¥ l LTS 108Ys £oy| 197
SINOH sjesys sHun "ON
I /sino u ajes S,
0L 10 °ON nn ¢/ H 10 0N suun [eog ysel e

aouasajasd yarnsyg Jed ‘evondo st yooig aimeubis :F1ION

SWEN JUBYNSUDD

enyeuoq uelig

"au| 'olpnig apsu|

jeq f aanyeub)s

BwieN juld

Bunuasaiday

gAYy 55316UCY 01 DAL 0SSEARAA WY} aAY 2)86ISapY

SUe|q odeaspue] 9z

anyeuoq uekrg wisa

A



SCOPE OF SERVICES
Attachment- 5

Lighting Design Services by Sub-Consultant
Smith Engineering Consultants, Inc.

Wesigate Ave from Wabasso Dr to Congress Ave June 18, 2020
American Consulting Engineers of Florida, LLC PBC Project No. 2019601

77



sy Smith Engineering
o Consultants, Inc.

March 23, 2020

Mr, Jagan Katkuri, PE

American Consulting Professionals, LLC
2041 Vista Parkway, Suite 101

West Palm Beach, FL 33411

Re: Palm Beach County- Traffic Engineering, Westgate Ave. Lighting
Electrical Engineering Services Proposal

Dear Jagan:

Smith Engineering Consultants, Inc. (SEC) is pleased to provide this proposal for the
above referenced project. We propose to provide the following scope of services:

Design Phase:

1. Initial site visit and review of project plans.

2. Meet with the client to determine the appropriate lighting levels, types of light
poles/fixtures, and lighting controls desired for this project.

3. Roadway lighting design in accordance with Illuminating Engineering Society
standards, the National Electrical Code, and applicable local codes. The lighting is
to be installed along both sides of Westgate Avenue from Wabasso Drive to
Congress Ave using poles and fixtures supplied and installed by FPL.

4. Prepare lighting calculations (photometrics) to indicate design illumination levels
for permitting.

5. Coordinate with FPL as necessary.
6. Prepare an estimate of construction costs for the electrical installations.

7. Attend design/coordination meetings with American Consulting Professionals as
necessary.

SEC will prepare contract documents, suitable for bidding, permit, and construction,
including plans and specifications. We will assist in preparing addendums and respond to
questions during the bid process. We propose to furnish specifications in MSWord
format and drawings in AutoCAD format using base plan drawings provided by
American Consulting Professionals. Our lump sum fee to provide the Design Phase
services described above is $14,500.

2161 Palm Beach Lakes Blvd., Suite 312

West Palm Beach, FL 33409
l ; « (561) 616-3911 Fax {561) 616-3912




Construction Phase:

1.
2.

4.

5.

Review electrical equipment shop drawings.

Respond to contractor requests for information (RFI’s) and review change order
requests.

Attend up to two (2) construction meetings or site visits.

Perform substantial completion and final inspections and prepare punch lists.

Prepare record drawings based upon contractor “as-built” drawings

Our lump sum fee to provide the Construction Phase services described above is $4,500.

Thank you for using Smith Engineering Consultants as the source for these engineering
services. We look forward to working with you on this project.

Sincerely,

Larry M. Smith, P. E.

President

79



SMITH ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, INC.

WESTGATE AVENUE LIGHTING
MARCH 23, 2020 PROPOSAL

HOURLY BREAKDOWN OF SERVICES

b,

PRINCIPAL | PROJECT CADD TOTAL LABOR
ENGINEER TECH HOURS COST
ACTIVITY BY BY
ACTIVITY| ACTIVITY
$175.00 $150.00 $85.00
Design Phase Services
Initial Site Visit 0.0 4.0 4.0 8.0 $940.00
Client Meetings 2.0 6.0 0.0 8.0 $1.250.00
Prepare Lighting Plans 2.0 16.0 32,0 50.0 $5,470.00
Prepare lllumination Calculations 2.0 8.0 16.0 26.0 $2,910.00
FPL Coordination 0.0 4.0 0.0 4.0 $600.00
(Prepare Cost Estimate 1.0 4.0 4.0 9.0 $1,115.00
[Design Coordination Meetings 2.0 6.0 0.0 8.0 $1,250.00
Bidding 1.0 3.0 4.0 8.0 $965.00
Sub-total | $14,500.00
TOTAL MANHOURS 10.0 51.0 60.0 121.0
DIRECT LABOR COST $1,750.00 $7,650.00 $5,100.00 $14,500.00
TOTAL FEES $14,500.00




SCOPE OF SERVICES
Attachment- 6

Signalization Design Services by Sub-Consultant
Smith Engineering Consultants, Inc.

Westgate Ave from Wabasso Dr to Congress Ave June 18, 2020
American Consulting Engineers of Florida, LLC g i/ PBC Project No. 2019601



Smith Engineering

Consultants,Inc.

June 18, 2020

Mr. Jagan Katkuri, PE

American Consulting Professionals, LLC
2041 Vista Parkway, Suite 101

West Palm Beach, FL 33411

Re:. Palm Beach County- Traffic Engineering, Westgate Ave. Signalization
Electrical Engineering Services Proposal

Dear Jagan:

Smith Engineering Consultants, Inc. (SEC) is pleased to provide this proposal for the
above referenced project. We propose to provide the following scope of services:

Design Phase:

1. Initial site visit and review of project plans.

2. Signalization design for the relocation of existing roadway signal heads and
pedestrian crossing signals.

3. Attend design/coordination meetings with American Consulting Professionals as
necessary.

SEC will prepare contract documents, suitable for bidding, permit, and construction,
including plans and specifications. We will assist in preparing addendums and respond to
questions during the bid process. We propose to furnish specifications in MSWord
format and drawings in AutoCAD format using base plan drawings provided by
American Consulting Professionals. Our lump sum fee to provide the Design Phase
services described above is $6,610.

Construction Phase:

1. Review electrical equipment shop drawings.

2. Respond to contractor requests for information (RFI’s) and review change order
requests.

3. Attend up to two (2) construction meetings or site visits.
4. Perform substantial completion and final inspections and prepare punch lists.

5. Prepare record drawings based upon contractor “as-built” drawings

2161 Palm Beach Lakes Bivd., Suite 312

West Palm Beach, FL 33409
Q () {561) 616-3911 Fax (561) 616-3912




Our lump sum fee to provide the Construction Phase services described above is $3,215.

Thank you for using Smith Engineering Consultants as the source for these engineering
services. We look forward to working with you on this project.

Sincerely,
R y

Larry M. Smith, P. E.
President

%



SMITH ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, INC.

WESTGATE AVENUE SIGNALIZATION
JUNE 18, 2020 PROPOSAL
HOURLY BREAKDOWN OF SERVICES

PRINCIPAL ; PROJECT CADD TOTAL LABOR
ENGINEER| TECH HOURS COST
ACTIVITY BY BY
ACTIVITYY ACTIVITY
$175.00 $150.00 $85.00
Design Phase Services
Initiaf Site Visit 0.0 4.0 0.0 4.0 $600.00
Prepare Signalization Plans 2.0 16.0 24.0 420 $4,790.00
Design Coordination Meetings 0.0 6.0 0.0 6.0 $900.00
Bidding 0.0 1.0 2.0 3.0 $320.00
Sub-total | $6.610.00
TOTAL MANHOURS 2.0 27.0 26.0 55.0
DIRECT LABOR COST $350.00 $4,050.00 | $2,210.00 $6,610.00
TOTAL FEES $6,610.00

V&



SCOPE OF SERVICES
Attachment- 7

Post Design Services

Westgate Ave from Wabasso Dr to Congress Ave ~ June 18, 2020
American Consuiting Engineers of Florida, LLC ? Q PBC Project No, 2019601



Wd 884 DZ0C/EHY

| 10z ebey Bug - jenlS 8o
*SpCBL900ZXsRUBaq I50d dOYead pauqo] eebisem
BLZIS'E9% 334 031VALLST 1viOLl aNvu®
BITIET9S | 234 OALVAILS3 TYLOLENS
0008 %00°0 | “SISNIIT
o00% %000 “(Rauo 1507 [elde) sannie4) WoD4
€1695'0% %l “NIDUVYA ONLLYHIJO
CCTIEGES %691 ] ‘avaHu3no
EL061 128 'S180D QILVTITH AUVTYS
€L08L'EZS  =%03uD
15188 £L'061'1Z8 0005 0005 0008 000s 0003 0005 003 00°0$ 0008 00'0% EVIDE'6S | OT'68ZLLS 1500 HEIS (€10)
15185 €L 061128 e 0 0 0 ] 0 [ 0 [ 0 0 124 1ZL THe SHSE L UOWWGY) Weliud PUE [BIAUSE) 108[C1d "¢
jysel Aoy Ayanoy [ 00'os 0008 ooos 6£0ES [ S9°85% 00943 [5 00'899% £8'18s 0E'E6s - lewing
HS.
Jad ayed Agisoen Aa — -
71 uonesy L1 uopesy 01 Uopeay 6 uonesy souBjsag raubjsaq seubjseq JoouBug 15u3 16u3 | JaBeuel | oy sinay vapeosselD geig
aBelany Kiejeg HS -ISSEID 4RIS | -ISSRID YEIS | -ISSEID MEIS | -1SSE|D uels 10[Udg P2 waleid  |19eford Jomuag dojtiag 93fo.d LEIS Bl0)
OND  Hojeuns3 YiN TON dvd
{ZezaLa  eeg 1096102 ‘Ndd
LE666818 TON jueynsucy Yoeag wjed :Qunay
271 's|euoissajold Bugnsuog ueauaury  aleN JUR]INSUC) snuaAy 55a)6u0N 0) aAL(] DSSBARAA WY anuday ojebisop noafold Jo sWwen
samaLag ubise( 1sod

ANVLTISNOD SWldd - 1500 ONV LHO-443 HHOM 40 3LVNILS3



020z/2L/9

SHSE | [BIIUDE 139f02] g

Z oz abey
XBN'8L900Z¥SIMUBISa I1S0d dOVaed paulwos S1ebisamm
bl
QAOGE 9'¢ YSk| 0} sales sinoH Gunaaiy Wd |B10L Zl 19 sBupeap Jabeuep joaford [ejol
2|npayos LONOMUISLOD Lluow g Bulnp sUsts g 18 2 14 v3 smelAey plald
YO eeblsem 'Oad Unm sBunaapy g 4 14 V3 aImosjiyoly edeosplien
VD Sebisom “1dd uim sbBunaspy 8 < 14 va Bunub
uoponisuad Buunp sBunesp plely oL z 2 v sanmn
uonanysuoa Buunp sbugesy platd -] Z ¥ va afieuieaq
uoponisued Suunp sBupsspy pleld vy S1EGISapM pUE Jels Dad Bunealy Jo3oit Uogorujsuos ol z 2 va Aempeoy
Sjusuwoy SINOH [ejoy | JUN JSINOH | SPUf) Jo ON SHuUn sBujsep JoBeuely ysfoid 303517 - 9°€
b d'sA [ejo) syse] |esauay yaeload pue uowiwo Jaafoid ¢

uonansues Buunp s14y shusmesp doys abeureig 011 0zL 1 5] seoineg ublsaqisod) 8¢

mojaq Buns)| sog Zl 2l 1 51 sBunaayy Jabieuep joaloud Jueynsuon swyd|  9¢

SHUsuLO) SIhoH 1uq) JSINOH | spun Jo oN sJRN yqsel "ON

lejol ; 3 ) ysel
Aley.o suyg dov
172y UNoJAe Jdd
a)eq f eameubig auwleN juug Bunussasdey
1096L02

anusAy ssaubiuo)) 0) eati(] OSSEGEAA WOl anuasy ebisepn

S)SE] {eJeusy) ¢

saolaag ubisaqg 3sod

ON2 olewnsy

L7



id 05°F 0202USLD

0Z'orb'yS 334 0ILYWLLST TVLOL ONYHD
000§ 533185 [euondp
0Zark'ps 1334 G3LVKILSS TWI0LENS
0zarp'ps ‘334 a3LVALLST TYL0LENS
00'0% ‘$ISNIJX3
000§ H(Asuopy 1507 Eydes sone4) WDDA
00°03 INIDYVIN DNILYHILO
Do'0% AyaHH3A0
0zt v :S1800 AAVITH AUV VS
0ZPFPE  =%8UD
¥6'8ELS 0Z9FF'FS C0'0% 0008 00705 000§ D005 0008 00’03 0008 0008 00'0% co'0% 00'5¥9% 0z'108'c$ 1500 JOI5 [er0),
[ 0 0 [ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 oz [ SINOH HEIS [E10L
PH'BEIS [ias] [ 0 0 [ 0 0 0 0 0 0 [} 0 9 [ [ Suppep g Bubig
yseL Ry [STYE 0008 0008 D0'0S 0005 0005 00'08 0008 [ 0008 00'0$ 000§ 09 L0LE 0z'apLs i
18 By Ag 350D Ag seaubug Aaaulfug HS.
1oafoag 1aafoid w4 $oH |ucneayisseln yeis
obizlony Aeeg HS Aopusg He1se1oL
PLETIE] TON dvd
0Z0Zi5He =eq Nad
TON WBNSU0D Yaeaq wied WAunon
-auy ‘BupsauBug aaansung  tSWEN JUB)INSUSY LO96LOZ pafold Jo swen

INVLINSNODENS - LS00 ONY L0443 MHOM 40 JLYWILST




0c0z/sL/e

Z¢ = |ejo]
9 9 L 81 sHsip sug/sBunas|y (Z) om L puspy
sbuimelg doyg ‘S|4 ‘SuoisSInay sued a9z 9z 1 g sanineg ubisaq 1804
sinoH nun sjun
Siusuiiod |ejodl J SINOH JO JaquInN siun ASEL

109610¢

Bupjiepy JuswiaAed pue bulubis ;7 AJIANOY Jo9loid

3 SAIONISUOD) JBUIY] Jiuse)] ojewnsT]

€9



g,“\‘ insite studio

planning + landscape architecture

May 26, 2020

Jagan Katkuri

American Consulting Professionals, LLC
2041 Vista Parkway, Suite 101

West Palm Beach, FL 33411

IKatkuri@acp-fl.com
Re: Proposal for Landscape Architecture Services — Westgate Avenue from Wabasso Drive to Congress Avenue
Dear lagan,

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal for professional services for the above referenced Project.
This Agreement is made as of May 26, 2020 between American Consulting Professionals, LLC. {Client) and Insite
Studio, Inc. {Consultant). The Scope of Services and associated fees are outlined below. Additionally, the
Standard Terms and Conditions associated with our services are attached hereto and are made part of this
Agreement.
Scope of Services
l. Construction Administration ' $7,167.72
As requested by client, Insite Studio will provide construction administration services during the construction
phase of the project. The following services are included during this phase:
s Attendance at up to ten meetings with client and contractor during the construction phase of the project.
¢ Response to RFI's and product submittals.
e  Preparation of field reports to doecument construction progress and provide information to client.
s Review and approval of contractor pay applications.
e Substantial completion walk-though with client and contractor.
e  Preparation of punch list based on substantial completion walk-though
¢ Final Inspection of completed project and issuance of certification letter.

Prior to commencement of work, please return a signed copy of this Agreement to our office. Additionally, the
Client shall provide site surveys and CAD files (if available), for Consultants use in developing plans and completing
the defined scope of work.

Thanks again for the opportunity to submit this proposal for professional services. Should you have any questions
regarding the scope of services or terms and conditions, please feel free to contact me directly.

Sincerely,

=

Bryan Donahue, PLA
Principal
Insite Studio, Inc.

8144 Okeechobee Blvd. Suite A, West Palm Beach, FL 33411
www.insitestudio.com | 561.249.0940

I N e Page 1of 5



Wd byt DT0Z/Z9

a/

| o obag UBISAQ 180 GNS - 188U o8y
xspeypauspRaKdy SINGH Je1g ey sjefisem
[F¥EINT] -334 03 LVWLLST T¥i01 ONVED
0008 [ saapag euagdey]
[AEINE] :334 Q3LvWILS3 TVLOLENS "a8) s 31R(N2JRD O} JURJNSUAaqNS Aq PAsN 6q 0118aUs SL, "L
TLL9L'LE ‘334 Q3LYNLLES TWLOLBNS 's3j0N
€4Z69'P% %S8L “H3NdILINW U-H0Hd ANY AvaHY3A0
66'¥15'ZS _ ‘51800 031v13d AUVIVS
B6'TISZS =]
66958 651528 0008 00°08 00708 0508 [ 0003 2005 [N 00'0§ BO'LIGLS vE'9L4$ 95'9415 1500 JIRIS 2101
[E] 0 0 0 0 0 [ [} 0 0 15 ¥t [l 89 SINOH JeiS (B0l
66'9E$ G15'z8 8% [] [] Q Q Q 0 [ 0 0 [ rt 5 89 saalateg ubisag 1sod
ysel Rindy ftanoy Ly L 0008 oS 000% s WS 0008 0005 65TIES 12158 foarand -t
ABwwng HS,
& & ucjeD) uajjeol, Luopes ol inoH
J2d ajey :RELSY a Zzhuopeay | jpuopesy | of vopeay 6§ uopeay g uoneay L uoyeo)} 9 uopeay § uapesy ¥ uopeay 1subisag v | w1 109f0ig 1 smsEeL Juogesyssers yasg
abesany Aueeg HES “IS5RI1D YIS | -IS58|D Je)S | -ISSe|D JEIS | -1SSeID YIS | -ISSeID Jels | -1SseiD JelS | -1SSe]D YE)S | -ISSelD Jels | -Jsseld Jeis lediaupd
anyeuag uehlg  ojewWRSg YiN S'ON dvd
0zZ0Z '} aunr &eqg LOSELOE ‘Ndd
BiL1 TON JUEJNSLOD Aunop yaeag wied Auncd
"ot ‘OIPNIS BNSU|  BLUEN JUBYNSUAD) anuaay ssa1BUBD 0) aAug 0SSEARA WOY SNUasY 1BBisaA Hoslald 1o sweN

SIDIAYUIS NDISTA 1S0d - INVLINSNOIENS ~ LSO ONV L0443 HHOM 40 31LVIILST



* 020ZrEN

L o | afieq ubisa 1504 edeospueT /e
xs[xpoyspesds snapp yels ‘aay sjebisap
89 SINOH [ealuyoe] sueld adeaspuer

8 ¥ [4 va sualpadsull 9'2e
0z 4 ¢13 A E] sBunesiy| 5'2¢
9 9 I va Bryyund| vze
43 9 [4 va suodey pjetd| £'7¢
4} Z 9 LE] S[ERILGNS JONPOId JO [eatiddy pue maned | z'2¢
ol I 118 v3 s4y 0] puodsey pue malaay| L'z
sjusuIon M”MH_ U fsInoH Wo:..%_ syun yseL x.M”_ L

daudsopatd yoisig 1ad euondo sy yaojg asmeubis (510N

BUEN JUBYNSUOD

“au ‘o|pMg sksu)

ajeq j aimeubig

Bujjuasaiday

*ony ssaifiuog o) sanQ osseqep WY sAy ojEDISaM

uBisaq )50 2UessSpue /&

anyeuoq uelig sy

49



SMITH ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, INC.,
WESTGATE AVENUE LIGHTING
MARCH 23, 2020 PROPOSAL
HOURLY BREAKDOWN OF SERVICES

PRINCIPAL | PROJECT CADD TOTAL LABOR
ENGINEER TECH HOURS COST
ACTIVITY BY BY
ACTIVITY{ ACTIVITY
$175.00 $150.00 $85.00
Construction Phase Services
Review Shop Drawings 0.0 6.0 0.0 6.0 $900.00
(Review RFI's and Change Orders 1.0 2.0 0.0 3.0 $475.00
[[Attend Two (2) Meetings/Site Visits 0.0 6.0 0.0 6.0 $500.00
Perform Substantial Completion Inspection 0.0 4.0 0.0 4,0 $600.00
Perform Final Inspection 0.0 4.0 0.0 4.0 $600,00
Prepare Record Drawings 1.0 4.0 4.0 9.0 $1,115.00
Sub-total | $4,580.00
TOTAL MANHOURS 2.0 26.0 4,0 32.0
DIRECT LABOR COST $350.00 $3,900.00 $340,00 $4,590.00
TOTAL FEES $4,520.00

97




SMITH ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, INC.
WESTGATE AVENUE SIGNALIZATION

JUNE 18, 2020 PROPOSAL

HOURLY BREAKDOWN OF SERVICES

PRINCIPAL | PROJECT CADD TOTAL LABOR
ENGINEER TECH HOURS COST
ACTIVITY BY BY
ACTIVITY| ACTIVITY
$175.00 $150.00 $85.00

Construction Phase Services

Review Shop Drawings 0.0 2.0 0.0 2.0 $300.00

Review RFl's and Change Orders 0.0 2.0 0.0 2.0 $300.00

Attend Two (2) Meetings/Site Visits 0.0 6.0 0.0 6.0 $800.00

Perform Substantial Completion fnspection 0.0 3.0 0.0 3.0 $450.00

Perform Final Inspection 0.0 3.0 0.0 3.0 $450.00

Prepare Record Drawings 1.0 2.0 4.0 7.0 $815.00
Sub-total | $3,215.00

TOTAL MANHOURS 1.0 18.0 4.0 23.0

DIRECT LABOR COST $175.00 $2,700.00 $340.00 $3,215.00

TOTAL FEES $3,215.00

S




REDEVELOPMENT TRUST FUND

REVENUE;

Batance Brought Forward
Ad Valorem Taxes (TIF)
Rental Income

Interest

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES:

Employee Expenditures:
Salaries & Wages
Retirement

Insurance - Health/Dental
Payroll Taxes

Total Payroll Expenditures

Professional Expenditures
Eng. & Const. Coordination
Technical Assistance

Audit Fees

Legal Fees

Total Professional Expenditure

Other Expenditures
Government Fees & Services
Insurance/Property/Liability

Landscape & Prop. Maintenance

Property Management
Streetlights/Utilities

Office Rent/Utilities
Advertising

Community Garden
Community Activities

PR & Marketing

Mortgage Payments

Bank Fees & Charges
Neighborhood Preserv. Grant
COVID-19 SBA Program
Tenant Buildout Asst.

Rent Asst. program

Site Develop. Asst. Pragram
Commun /Mailouts

Dues & Subscriptions
Housing & Economic Devel,
Staff & Board Development
Office Equipment/Supplies
Miscellaneous

Transfer to Capital Improv.

Total Other Expenditures
Total Expenditures

APPROVED
BUDGET
FY2020

800,000
2,471,187
58,000
1,000

3,430,187

374300
33,659
74,000
29,080

511,049

200,000
350,000
20,000

50,000

620,000

300
25,000
140,000
30,000
65,000
70,000
10,000
100,000
100,000
60,000
19,500
2,200
60,000
0
100,000
50,000
200,000
6,000
2,500
382,500
15,000
20,000
16,638

730,000

2,204,638
3,208,538

PROPOSED
BUDGET
FY2021

1,000,000
2,737,786
65,000
1,000

3,803,786

385530
34,670
74,000

30,000

524,200

200,000
350,000
20,000

50,000

620,000

300
25,000
140,000
30,000
65,000
70,000
10,000
100,000
100,000
60,000
0

2,200
60,000
100,000
100,000
100,000
225,000
6,500
2,500
350,000
15,000
20,000
18,086

1,060,000

2,659,586
3,803,786

75

INCREASE/
(DECREASE)

100,000
266,599
7,000

0

373,599

11,230
1,011
0

910

13,151

o0 0 OO

C OO COoOOCOoOoCOoOo

-19,500
0

0
100,000
0
50,000
25,000
500

0
-32,500
0

0

1,448
330,000

454,948
779,641



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

REVENUES:

Balance Brought Forward
Property Acquisition

Solid Waste Authority
Transferred from Trust Fund
CDBG Grant

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES:
Construction Projects

Property Acquisition

BH Streetlights and Sidewalks
Dog Park

Westgate Avenue
Neighborhood Park

Total Expenditures

APPROVED
FY2020

600,000
0
91,000
730,000
0

1,421,000

147,000
300,000
91,000

0

538,000

. PROPOSED
FY2021

600,000
0

91,000
1,060,000
300,000

INCREASE/
DECREASE

0
0
0
330,000
300,000

2,051,000

600,000
1,320,000
131,000

0

630,000

453,000
1,020,000
40,000

0

2,051,000

1,513,000



Transportation Planning Agency Fund

REVENUES:

Balance Brought Forward
BelvedereHeights Phase 1
Belvedere Heights Phase 2
Westgate Ave Streetscape
Seminole Boulevard
Cherry Road

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES:
Construction Projects

Belvedere Heights Phase 1
Belvedere Heights Phase 2
Waesltgate Ave Streetscale
Seminole Boulevard
Cherry Road

Total Expenditures

PROPOSED
FY2019

4,467,000
0

0

0

B87,982

0

5,354,982

QOO o 00O

PROPOSED
FY2020

5,354,982
0
0
0

6,354,982

1,104,000
956,000
2,407,000
887,982

6,354,982

1,000,000

1,000,000

INCREASE/
DECREASE

887,982
0
0
0

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,104,000
956,000
2,407,000

1,000,000

6,354,982

CONSTRUCTION

2021
2022
2023
2023
2024



Governmental Center - Fifth Floor
301 North Olive Avenue
‘West Palm Beach, FL 33401

tel 561.355.3230
fax 561.355.3963

phcgev.orgfpopa

DOROTHYJACKS
ey GFA | AAS
Palm Beach County Property Appraiser

June 25, 2020

Carmen Geraine, Chairman

Westgate /Belvedere Homes CRA
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215
West Palm Becach, Fl. 33409

Re: 2020 Preliminary Tax Roll

Dear Ms. Geraine:

Administration

C. Dino Maniotis, CFE

Tax Roll Ceordinator

301 North Qlive Avenue, 5h Flr
West Palin Beach, FI33401

tel 561.355.24681

fax 561.355.3963
dmanioti@phbcgov.org

Below are your certified 2020 Preliminary Tax Roll values for Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA.

Your taxable valve may differ from that of the county’s because of value adjustments made for
the county-wide senior, historic, or economic exemptions which do not apply to your CRA district.

Total Taxable Value: $ 539,928,934

Net New Construction: $ -308,217

Current Year Tax Increment: $ 349,759,667

If you have any questions or concerns, please call,

Constantine Dino Maniotis, CFE
Tax Roll Coeordinator

Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA, 0091

WEST COUNTY
SERVICE CENTER
26764 State Road 15
Belle Glade, FL 33430
tel 541.996,4890

fax 561.996.1661

NORTH COUNTY

SERVICE CENTER

3188 PGA Blvd,, Sulte 2301
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410
tel 561.624.6521

fax 561.624.6565

MID-WESTERN COMMUNITIES
SERVICE CENTER

200 Civie Center Way, Suite 200
Royal Palm Beach, FL 33411

tel 561.784.1220

fax 561.784.1241 q -E‘/

SOUTH COUNTY
SERVICE CENTER

14925 Cumberland Drive
Delray Beach, FL 33446
tel 561.276.1250

fax 561.276.1278



VTRV RS

MEMORANDUM

TO: Westgate CRA

FROM: Elizee Michel, Executive Director, Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community
Redevelopment Agency

DATE: July 1, 2020

RE: Tax Increment Financing Based on June 25, 2020 Preliminary
Tax Raoall

Total Taxable Value $539,928,934

Base Year $190,169,267

Current Year Tax Increment $349,759,667

FY 2020 County Operating Millage: 4.7815

FY 2020 Fire Rescue Millage: 3.4581

Incremental Revenue: $2,881,880

Statutory Reduction Factor .95

Total Tax Increment Financing Expected $2,737,786

Amount used for Budget $2,737,786

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, Fl. 33409
561.640.8181 o Fax 561.640.8181

19



